
      One of the most fundamental 
         measures was to re-focus 
                  at the core cinema business.





As of December 31 2006 2007 2008 2009

Revenue Bt.million 5,247 6,594 5,328 5,561

EBITDA Bt.million 1,741 2,215 1,498 1,349

Net profit Bt.million 695 1,227 626 334

EBITDA margin 33% 34% 28% 24%

Net margin 13% 19% 12% 6%

Total assets Bt.million 8,782 9,294 9,659 11,269

Total liabilities Bt.million 4,585 3,672 4,237 5,880

Total equity Bt.million 4,197 5,622 5,422 5,389

Number of shares million 787.2 879.9 881.9 881.9

Book value Bt. 5.33 6.39 6.15 6.11

Earnings per share Bt. 0.92 1.42 0.71 0.39

Divendend per share Bt. 0.78 1.05 0.64 0.35

Dividend payout 85% 74% 90% 90%

Net interest-bearing D/E 0.62 0.30 0.37 0.60

Return on assets 9% 14% 7% 3%

Return on equity 20% 25% 11% 6%

Bt.694 million gain from assets injection into

Major Cineplex Lifestyle Property Fund was recognized in FY07

Financial

     Highlights

����� �� 	
���
	

Quarterly

EBITDA





MilestoneMilestoneMilestoneMilestoneMilestone

February 2009

MAJOR renamed its subsidiary

Pacific Marketing and Entertainment

(PMEG) Co. Ltd. to MVD Co. Ltd.

(MVD).

MAJOR additionally invested in

PVR blu-O Entertainment Co., Ltd.

(PVR blu-O) of 1,225,000 shares at

Rs.10 per share, equivalent to

Bt.8.25, totalling Bt.10.12 million.

June 2009

MAJOR issued a straight,

unsecured and unsubordinated

Baht debenture worth Bt.1,500

million with 3-year term, maturity

date on 15 June 2012, and a fixed

interest rate of 4.8% per annum.

July 2009

MAJOR sold all 19,999,995

ordinary shares in MVD to M Pictures

Entertainment Public Company

Limited (MPIC) with a selling price of

Baht 19.60 per share for a total

consideration of Bt.392 million.

MAJOR, at the same time, also

acquired 275,883,475 ordinary

shares of MPIC at the price of Baht

1.40 per share, for consideration of

Bt.386.24 million, by exchange of

ordinary shares of MVD at the fair

value of Bt.392 million and received

payment by cash of Bt.5.76 million.

After completion of these transac-

tions, MAJOR’s shareholding in MPIC

has changed from 40.81% to

65.93% resulting in MPIC and its

subsidiaries becoming subsidiaries of

MAJOR.

MAJOR acquired 124 million newly

issued ordinary shares of Siam Future

Development Public Company

Limited (SFD) at Bt.1.20 per share,

for the consideration of Bt.148.4

million.

October 2009

MAJOR opened a new Cineplex at

Amatanakorn serving 5 screens

November 2009

MAJOR managed capacity and

asset utilization by closing:

Aomyai branch (capacity of 12

lanes and 12 karaoke rooms)

Chachoengsao branch (capacity

of 12 lanes and 7 karaoke

rooms)

MAJOR added 2 screens to Korat

branch (bringing Korat capacity up

to 8 screens)

MAJOR disposed its investment in

CAWOW down to 19% of holding

interest.  After the disposal date,

CAWOW is technically no longer an

associate of the Group.

December 2009

MAJOR opened a new

Standalone Cineplex at Esplanade

Ngamwongwan-Kaerai serving 16

screens, 22 lanes, 13 karaoke rooms

and 1 ice skating rink.

MAJOR acquired 2,557,000 shares

of PVR Company Limited (PVR), a

leading cinema operator incorpo-

rated and listed in India, at Rs.165

or Bt.120.45 per share, represent-

ing 10% of paid-up share capital for

the consideration of

Bt.307,990,650.  PVR is under

registration process for the in-

creased share capital.  Thus, such

payment is recorded as advance for

share subscription.
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Looking

forward

”

“

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Somchainuk Engtrakul

MESSAGES

It was a challenging year, indeed.

Following a twelve-month period of political

turbulence in which Thailand had seen

three prime ministers, 2009 was greeted by

more troubles.  This time, it was not just

the local streets political showdowns, but

the havoc was “co-starred” by the mighty

global recession and the swine flu

pandemic.

Triple whammies

Subsequent to the airport seizure by one

political group in late 2008, the political

tension was renewed by another group and

finally erupted into street chaos in April

2009, which virtually ruined the festive

mood of Songkran holidays.  Besides, the

subprime problems and its aftermaths,

which have brought down or crippled many

financial institutions overseas, had sent a

serious shockwave and put the world

economy right into recession.  Exports

orders were falling, corporate revenues

contracted, people feared of losing jobs as

factories, in survival mode, were laying off

workers in bid to cut down on expenses.

As if these were not enough, the swine flu,

originated in Mexico, was rapidly

widespread and upgraded to pandemic in

only a few months.  Death tolls being

reported daily heightened the awareness

and fears in 3Q09.  Relying on exports &

tourism incomes, Thailand was inevitably

hard hit by all these factors.

Advertising business was

ground-zero

Historically, MAJOR had been quite resilient

during the economic downturn, which still

held true for its Cinema business.  The

problems this time around, however, were

too severe and hit directly at the

advertising media business, the highest-

margin part of MAJOR’s portfolio.

Advertising expenditures were simply

drying up as confidences were destroyed.

The only advertising activities that

remained were in the above-the-line media.

As MAJOR’s adverting media revenues

contracted, its net profit experienced a

sharp decline.

Fortunately, the Central Banks around the

world concertedly rushed to come out with

stimulus measures to contain the

recessions.  The street violence did not

linger on too long as the “red-shirted”

leaders surrendered after the riots going

beyond their control.  Political heat was

brought down from boiling to simmering.

The swine flu overwhelming awareness

declined as death tolls tapered and the

daily reporting were pulled off the limelight.

Signs of turnaround were apparent in the

second half of the year.

Down but not out

Although being hard-hit, MAJOR stays

committed to advocate the industry

growth.  Business structure continues to be

adjusted for higher efficiency, while new

capacities are being built out constantly.

In 2009, an “Integrated Films Company”

has been successfully created for the

Group under M Pictures Entertainment Plc.

(MPIC).  MAJOR has swapped its entire

stake in MVD Co., Ltd. (MVD), a

downstream home entertainment

distribution company, with newly issued

shares of MPIC, an upstream theatrical

distribution company.  Moreover, a film

production company, M Thirty Nine Co.,

Ltd. (M39), has also been established

within the MPIC Group to stimulate higher

growth in Thai films production.  All of which

are strategic moves that are expected to

help grow the industry by leveraging from

MAJOR’s stronghold in the cinema business

and its growing provincial Cineplex

network.

It was not just the local streets

political showdowns, but the havoc

was ‘co-starred’ by the mighty

global recession and

the swine flu pandemic.
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days

 to brighter
”

“

“

“

The latest effort in building out new

capacities was a significant one.  MAJOR’s

original model, Standalone Cineplex, was

commercially opened in Ngamwongwan-

Kaerai area during December 2009.

Branded “Esplanade Cineplex”, it is

equipped with 16 cinema screens, 24

bowling lanes, 1 ice-skating club, and

around 10,000 sq.m. of retails space.

Esplanade Cineplex Ngamwongwan-Kaerai

is intended to serve the fast growing

community in the northwest area of

Bangkok.

Looking forward to brighter days

Although 2009 performance was not quite

up to the level that it should be, many

valuable lessons were learnt and made

MAJOR even stronger.  Despite all the

challenges, the management team is

confident in the recovery of the macro

economy and is looking forward to brighter

days ahead.

On behalf of the management team,

I would like to express my full gratitude

towards all customers, employees,

shareholders, business partners and

related organizations for your endeavors,

supports and trust.  I greatly appreciate

your confidence in MAJOR and look

forward to more successes in the years

ahead.

Best regards,

Somchainuk Engtrakul

Chairman of the Board

The problems this time around,

however, were too severe and hit

directly at the advertising media

business, the highest-margin part

of MAJOR’s portfolio.

Despite all the challenges,

the management team is confident

in the recovery of the macro

economy and is looking forward

to brighter days ahead.
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Re-focusing

at the core

Chairman of the Executive Committee & CEO

Vicha Poolvaraluck

Uncertainties spoiling revenues

streams

In the past few years, the Advertising

media business had grown significantly as

MAJOR has built up dominant market share.

It had also contributed handsomely to the

net profit as it simply leveraged from the

traffic and the assets of the Cineplex

network.  With very minimal costs,

advertising services revenues went directly

All of the adverse factors;

the global economic crisis,

the political turmoil, and the

swine flu outbreak; were external

and uncontrollable“

”

MESSAGES

It’s external & uncontrollable

Amid the problematic macro environment in

2009, MAJOR chose to re-focus at the

original core business in a bid to rebuild

profitability.  All of the adverse factors; the

global economic crisis, the political turmoil,

and the swine flu outbreak; were external

and uncontrollable.  The worst was that all

of these problems hit the main source of

MAJOR’s profit.
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down to the bottom line, thus provided a

great cushion of profit for the entire group.

The uncertainties created by the lingering

political problems, however, had spoiled this

trend and brought down the advertising

services revenues to a trough in 2Q09.

The challenge was, how could MAJOR come

up with alternative sources of margins?

Streamlining cost structure

The instinctive reaction in such downturn

would be to cut costs.  Expense

Management Team was set up to optimize

costs looking for possibilities to trim

expenses, in an effort to streamline cost

structure and bring down break-even point.

Assets management activities for

better returns

Another action that was taken was to

manage and relocate assets for better

returns.  In the process of scanning the

costs & expenses, some branch appeared

to be under-performing and generating

negative EBIT, not because of the cost

structure, but because of the revenues

potentials were too low.  In such case,

these branches were closed down, and the

assets were relocated to new branches

scheduled to open during the year,

minimizing the investment costs as well as

the impact of assets write-off.  During the

second half of 2009, two bowling alleys

with combined capacities of 24 lanes were

closed down, while the brand-new

Esplanade Cineplex Ngamwongwan-Kaerai

was opened with  24 bowling lanes.

Dynamic Pricing to

enhance margin

One of the most fundamental

measures was to re-focus at

the core cinema business.

The pricing structure was

reviewed, and it was found

that the average ticket price

(ATP) might not have moved

up as it should.  Raising ticket

prices was suddenly an option.

But to avoid negative publicity

and turning away price-

conscious customers, it had to

”

“

be carefully executed.  “Dynamic Pricing” was designed to

prudently manage ATP upward.  Simple economics principle on

supply-demand was deployed.  At first, only ticket prices of

Hollywood blockbusters were raised 10-20% during the first week

of releases.  Then, high-traffic popular branches with high weekend

occupancy rates had also seen some ticket price hikes.  For price-

conscious customers, on the other hand, Wednesday admissions

ticket prices were cut by half to improve on the utilization rate.

These are only a few examples of “Dynamic Pricing” measures.

The outcome of “Dynamic Pricing” has been quite encouraging.

ATP has moved up 10% in 4Q09 when compared to ATP during

2008.  Combining with strong films releases in the last few months

of the year, 4Q09 registered a new record high for admissions

sales of over Bt.800m, improving admissions sales margin by 9%

compared to 4Q08.

From one standpoint, the havoc in 2009 was a “good wake-up call.”

Going into 2010, there have already been some positive signs, i.e.

continual indications of economic recovery toward year-end &

stronger-than-expected Corporates’ earnings in 4Q09.  Thus,

the Management team remains optimistic in the prospects of

the economy.  With the relatively strong films line-up and the core

business regaining strength, MAJOR is expected to be on its

path of recovery as well.

Best regards,

Vicha Poolvaraluck

Chairman and CEO

The challenge was,

how could MAJOR

come up with alternative

sources of margins?

“

”

One of the most

fundamental measures

was to re-focus

at the core cinema business
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Somchainuk

Engtrakul Age 65

Chairman of the Board

Education

Ph.D (Honorary Degree) in

Public Administration,

Sripathum University

Bachelor Degree of Law,

Sripathum University

Bachelor Degree of Art

(Economics), UPSALA  COLLEGE

NEW JERSEY, USA

DirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectors

& Management& Management& Management& Management& Management

    T    T    T    T    Teameameameameam

Vicha

Poolvaraluck Age 46

Director, Chairman of

Executive Commitee and

CEO

Shareholding: 36.7%

Education

Master Degree of Business

Administration, United

States International University of

San Diego, USA

 Bachelor Degree of Business

Administration, Chulalongkorn

University

Verawat

Ongvasith Age 39

Director and Executive

Director

Shareholding: 0.9%

Relationship with

Management

Younger brother of the

Chairman’s spouse

Education

Master Degree of Business

Administration, Boston

University, USA

Bachelor Degree of Business

Administration, Chulalongkorn

University
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Paradee

Poolvaraluck Age 46

Director and Executive

Director

Shareholding: 3.46%

Relationship with

Management

Chairman’s spouse

Education

Master Degree of Business

Administration, United States

International University of San

Diego, USA

Bachelor Degree of Business

Administration, Chulalongkorn

University

Experience

Oct 2004 - Present

Chairman of the Board

Major Cineplex Group Plc.

2000 - 2004

Permanent Secretary

Ministry of Finance

1997 - 2000

Director - General

The Customs Department,

Ministry of Finance

1996 - 1997

Director - General

The Excise Department, Ministry

of Finance

Other positions

 Chairman Dhipaya Insurance Plc.

Chairman National Credit

Bureau Company Limited

Director Training Program

RCP - Role of the Chairman

Program, Thai Institute of

Director (IOD)

Experience

1995 - Present

Chairman

Major Cineplex Group Plc.

2003 - Present

Director, Siam Future

Development Plc.

2003 - Present

Director, California WOW

Xperience Plc.

Experience

2002 - Present

Director / Executive Director

Major Cineplex Group Plc.

2003 - Present

Director

Siam Future  Development Plc.

2003 - Present

Director

California WOW Xperience Plc.

Director Training Program

DAP - Director

Accreditati on Program,

Thai Institute of Director

(IOD)

Experience

1998 - Current

Director / Executive Director

Major Cineplex Group Plc.

Other positions

Director, Member Activities

Chulalongkorn University

Alumni Association

MAI Advisory Committee,

Market of Alternative

Investment

Director Training Program

DCP - Director Certification

Program, Thai Institute of

Director (IOD)

PEOPLE
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Chai Jroongtanapibarn Age 55 Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee

Education

Master Degree of Science Accounting, Thammasart University

Bachelor Degree of Accounting, Chulalongkorn University

Experience

2002 - Present Independent Director & Audit Committee, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

1980 - 1997 Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer, The Minor Group

Other positions

Chairman of Audit Committee, Team Precision Plc. Chairman of Audit Committee,  Thai Metal Trade Plc.

Director, Siam Future Development Plc. Audit Committee, 124 Communications Plc.

Audit Committee, Oishi Plc. Audit Committee, Siam Food Plc.

Director Training Program

ACP - Audit Committee Program DCP - Director Certification Program Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

Wallop Tangtrongchitr Age 58 Independent Director and Audit Committee Shareholding: 0.02%

Education

Master Degree of Business Administration, Chapman University, USA

Bachelor Degree of Business Administration, San Diego University, USA

Experience

2002 - Present Independent Director / Audit Committee, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

1995 - 1997 Co-Ordinator, Regency Co.,Ltd.

1983 - 1995 Manager, Wellcom Co.,Ltd.

2520 - 2526 Project Co-Ordinator, Viwat Construction Ltd.

Other positions

Managing Director, Potara Co.,Ltd

Director Training Program

FSD - Financial Statement for Director DAP - Directors Accreditation Program

DCP - Director Certification Program FND - Finance for Non – Finance Directors Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

Naruenart Ratanakanok Age 54 Independent Director and Audit Committee

Education

Bachelor of Business Administration (Economics),  University of Detroit, USA

Experience

1995 - 1997 Managing Director, GF Capital Security

1984 - 1987 Busines Development Manager, Citicorp Capital Security

Other positions

Executive Director, Livesmart Company Limited Audit Committee, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

Director Training Program

ACP - Audit Committee Program DAP - Directors Accreditation Program

DCP - Director Certification Program  FSD - Financial Statement for Director Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

Wichai Poolworaluk Age 47 Director Shareholding: 0.47%

Relationship with Management Cousin of Chairman

Education

Bachelor Degree of Economics, Thammasat University   Modern Manager Program (MMP), Faculty of Commercial &

Accountancy, ChulalongKorn University  The Boss, Management & Psychology Institute   CEO Development Institute

Capial Market Academy

Experience

2007 - Present  Chairman of the Board, International Research Corporation Public  Limited (IRCP)

2006 - Present  President, Woraluk Property Co.,Ltd.

2005 - Present  Executive Director, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

1993 - 2004  Director & President, EGV Entertainment Plc. (EGV)

Other positions

President, Member of the Board of Governors Subcommittee for the Development of Business Venture &

of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) Budget The Institute for the Promotion of

 Committee Member, Thammasat Economics Association Teaching Science & Technology

 Vice Chairman, Federation of Thai Capital Market President, Thai Investors Association (TIA)

Orgainzation (FeTCO)

Director Training Program

DCP - Director Certification Program Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

Attasith Damrongrat Age 45 Director

Education

Master of Arts in Political Science, Ramkhamhang University  Bachelor of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University

Experience

Nov 07- Present  Director, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

Other positions

Advisor, Thai Press Association Director, MMP, Chulalongkorn University

Director, Thai - Hong Kong Business Council Director,Thai Contractors Association

Pol. Sub. Lt. Kriengsak Lohachala Age 67  Director

Education

 Doctor of Public Administration, Ramkhamhaeng University  Master of Public Administration, Kent State University, USA

 Bachelor of Laws, Thammasat University

Experience

2000-2002   Permanent Secretary, Bangkok Governor

1990-2000  Deputy Permanent Secretary, Bangkok Governor

Other positions

Consultant, Bureau of the Crown Property Consultant, Krungthep Thanakom Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Board, MASTER AD plc. Member, Rajaprajanugroh Foundation under

Member, Ruk Muangthai Foundation the Royal Patronage

Chairman of  the Board, A Plus Entertainment Plc. Independent Director and Audit Committee,

Independent Director, Kanyong Electric Plc. Pricha Group Plc.

Director Training Program

DAP - Directors Accreditation Program, Thai Institute of Director (IOD)
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Chatthaphum Khantiviriya Age 48 Group Chief Financial Officer Shareholding: 0.015%

Education

Master Degree of Business Administration, Kasetsart University

Bachelor Degree of Accounting, Chulalongkorn University

Experience

Mar 2007 - Present Chief Financial Officer, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

Mar 2006 - Dec 2006 Deputy Managing Director, RS Plc.

1998 - Mar 2006 Chief Financial Officer, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

Chate Mungkhalodom Age 52 Chief Media Sales

Education

 MBA, Business Administration - California State Polytechnic University, Pomona

 Certificate in Computer Programming - Woodbury University

 BA - Accounting - Ramkhamhaeng University

Experience

Mar 2009 – Present  Chief Media Sales, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

Jan 2003 – Nov 2008 Managing Director, Virgin BEC-Tero Radio (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok

Oct 2002 – Dec 2002 Finance Director, Virgin BEC-Tero Radio (Thailand) Ltd., Bangkok

Thanakorn Puriwekin Age 53 Director and Chief Films Officer Shareholding: 0.14%

Education

Master Degree of Business Administration, United States International University of San Diego, USA

Bachelor Degree of Business Administration, Bangkok University

Experience

1995 - Present Director / Chief Films Officer, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

Director Training Program

DAP - Directors Accreditation Program, Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

Anavach Ongvasith Age 42 Chief Cinema Business Shareholding: 0.03%

Relationship with Management Cousin of the Chairman’s spouse

Education

Master Degree of International Business, Boston University USA

 Bachelor Degree of Business Administration, Assumption University

Experience

2006 - Present Chief Cinema Business, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

1997 - 2005 Chief Marketing Officer, Major Cineplex Group Plc.

1992 - 1996 Marketing Manager, Siam Retail Development Ltd.

Jinda Wantanahatai Age 47 Chief Retails Business Shareholding: 0.030%

Education

Bachelor Degree of Arts, Chandrakasem Rajabhat University

Experience

1993 - 1995 Marketing Manager, The Mall Group Co.,Ltd.

1990 - 1992 Marketing Manager, AG Wilkinson Property

1982 - 1989 Marketing Manager, Dynasty Agency

Jiradej Nusthit Age 41 Chief Corporate Strategy & Investor Relations

Education

Master Degree of Business Administration, National University, San Diego, USA

Bachelor Degree, Computer Science, University of California - San Diego, La Jolla, USA

Experience

2003 - 2005  Manager - Strategic Planning, Advanced Info Service Plc.

2002 - 2002  Specialist - Corporate Planning, Advanced Info Service Plc.

1999 - 2002  Specialist - Investor Relations, Shin Corporation Plc.
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Theatre Business

Major Cineplex Group Plc.

Registration no. 0107545000047

Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., 

Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900

Nature of business 

Cinema & Entertainment Complex 

operator, concession vendor

Registered capital 906,000,000 

Paid up capital  881,897,219 

% of investment 100.00%

Theatre Business

Chiang Mai Cineplex Co.,Ltd.

Registration no. 0105543106571

Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., 

Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900

Nature of business Cinema operator, 

rental and services business, concession 

vendor
Registered capital 20,000,000 

Paid up capital  20,000,000 

% of investment  99.99%

Theatre BusinessUdon Five Star Cineplex Co.,Ltd.
Registration no. 0105546119569Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900Nature of business Cinema operatorRegistered capital 39,000,000 Paid up capital 39,000,000 % of investment  99.99%  

Theatre Business

Bangkok Imax Theatre
Co.,Ltd.

Registration no. 0105544003725

Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., 

Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900

Nature of business Cinema operator, 

concession vendor

Registered capital 1,000,000 

Paid up capital 1,000,000 

% of investment 99.93%

Theatre BusinessRatchayothin Cinema Co.,Ltd.
Registration no. 0105541034255Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900Nature of business Cinema operator, concession vendor
Registered capital 10,000,000 Paid up capital 10,000,000 % of investment 99.99%
  

Theatre Business

Siam Cineplex Co.,Ltd.

Registration no. 0105547057656

Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., 

Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900

Nature of business Cinema operator, 

concession vendor

Registered capital  150,000,000 

Paid up capital 150,000,000 

% of investment 99.99%

GeneralGeneralGeneralGeneralGeneral

InforInforInforInforInformationmationmationmationmation

ofofofofof     thethethethethe

CompanyCompanyCompanyCompanyCompany

SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries

  and Associated  and Associated  and Associated  and Associated  and Associated

CompaniesCompaniesCompaniesCompaniesCompanies

ORGANIZATION

16
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Theatre BusinessEGV Entertainment Plc.Registration no. 0107545000225Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., 
Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900Nature of business Cinema & Entertainment Complex operator, concession vendorRegistered capital 440,000,000 Paid up capital 260,001,575 % of investment 60.36%

Bowling Business

Major Bowl Group Co.,Ltd.

(Ratchayothin Bowl Co.,Ltd.)

Registration no. 0105541034263

Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., 

Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900

Nature of business Bowling alley 

operator, concession vendor

Registered capital 36,000,000 

Paid up capital  36,000,000 

% of investment 99.99%

Rental and Services BusinessMajor Cineplex Property 
Co.,Ltd.

Registration no. 0105537078910Head office 1221/39 Sukhumvit Rd., North Klongton, Wattana, Bangkok Nature of business Rental and services business
Registered capital 78,000,000 Paid up capital 78,000,000 % of investment 99.99%

Rental and Services Business

Major Cineplex Service Co.,Ltd.

Registration no. 0105540016130

Head office 1221/39 Sukhumvit Rd., 

North Klongton, Wattana, Bangkok 

Nature of business Rental and 

services business

Registered capital 23,000,000 

Paid up capita 23,000,000 

% of investment 99.99%

Rental and Services BusinessRatchayothin Realty Co.,Ltd.Registration no. 0105539097628Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900Nature of business Rental and services businessRegistered capital 100,000,000 Paid up capital 100,000,000 % of investment 99.99%

Rental and Services BusinessRatchayothin ManagementCo.,Ltd.
Registration no. 0105540016121Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900Nature of business Rental and services business

Registered capital 5,000,000 Paid up capital 5,000,000 % of investment 99.99%

Advertising Business

Major Cinead Co.,Ltd.

Registration no. 0105544103711

Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., 

Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900

Nature of business Advertising agency

Registered capital 1,000,000 

Paid up capital 1,000,000 

% of investment 99.93%

Strategic Investment
California Wow Xperience Plc. 
Registration no. 01075 74700895
Head office 287 Liberty Square 
Building, Silom, Bangrak, Bangkok
Nature of business Fitness club 
operator
Registered capital 723,952,899 
Paid up capital 550,369,767 
% of investment 19.00%

Strategic Investment

Siam Future Development Plc.

Registration no. 107545000187

Head office 99 Rachadapisek Rd., 

Dindaeng Bangkok
Nature of business Neighborhood 

shopping mall developer, rental and 

services business
Registered capital 1,047,089,351 

Paid up capital  1,026,295,826        

% of investment 24.10%

  

Strategic InvestmentRatchayothin Avenue Management Co.,Ltd.(Formerly known as Major Online Co.,Ltd.)Registration no. 108454822763Head office 1839 Phaholyothin Rd., 
Ladyao, Jatuchak, Bangkok 10900Nature of business Neighborhood shopping mall developerRegistered capital 1,000,000 Paid up capital 1,000,000 % of investment 99.93%

Strategic Investment

Thai Ticket Major Co.,Ltd.

Registration no. 105543020073

Head office 3199 Maleenon Tower 

Flr 27, Rama 4 Rd, Klongtun, Bangkok

Nature of business  Ticketing service 

for event organizers, bus, airline and 

hotel operators and Ticketing Software 

Specialists 
Registered capital 10,000,000 

Paid up capital 10,000,000 

% of investment 40.00%

Strategic Investment

Ratchayothin Avenue Co.,Ltd.

Registration no. 105550006391

Head office 99 Ratchadapisek Rd., 

Dindaeng, Bangkok

Nature of business Neighborhood 

shopping mall developer

Registered capital 100,000,000 

Paid up capital 100,000,000 

% of investment 50.00%

Strategic InvestmentMajor Cineplex Lifestyle Property FundRegistration no. 179/2550Head office  ING Funds, 130-132 Sindhorn Tower 1, G Flr, Sindhorn Tower 3,Flr 15,17,18 Vithayu Rd., Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330 Nature of business Property FundRegistered capital 2,300,000,000 Paid up capital 2,300,000,000 % of investment 33.00%

Strategic Investment

M Pictures Co.,Ltd.

(Formerly known as Traffic Corner Holdings Plc.) 

Registration no. 107544000124

Head office 97/11 Office Building at 

EGV Metropolis, Rachadamri Rd., 

Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok

Nature of business Films Licensee for 

distributions
Registered capital 360,000,000 

Paid up capital 360,000,000 

% of investment 65.93%

Strategic InvestmentPVR blu-O Entertainment LimitedRegistration no. U74120DL2008PLC176081
Head office 61,Basant Lok, Vasant 
Vihar, New Delhi-110 057 India.Nature of business Bowling alley and 
Karaoke operatorRegistered capital INR 150,000,000 
(150,000,000 x 0.7697=115,455,000 Baht)
Paid up capital INR 90,000,000 
(90,000,000 x 0.7697=69,273,000 Baht)
% of investment 49.00%

Distribution Business 
MVD Co.,Ltd.

(Formerly Pacific Marketing & Entertainment Group Inc.)renamed to MVD Co.,Ltd since 3 February 2009 
Registration no. 0105545084664Head office 97/11 Big C Rajadamri, 5, 6th Floor, Rachadamri Rd, Lumpini, Pathumwan, BangkokNature of business Films Licensee for distributions
Registered capital 100,000,000 Paid up capital 100,000,000 
% of investment 65.92%

17
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                      Lifestyle

   Entertainment

Company

”

“

BUSINESSES

“

“
The “Cineplex” concept

was first introduced to the

Thais in 1995 when Mr.

Vicha Poolvaraluck, the

founder of MAJOR, built

the first-of-its-kind

Standalone “Cineplex” in

Pinklao area of Bangkok.

The Standalone “Cineplex”

concept combines

customer experiences of

Cinema & Entertainment

complex under the same

roof.  That means,

moviegoers are offered;

not only a wide range of

films selection in the

multiplex cinema format;

but also a vast variety of

restaurants, gift shops,

bookstores and many other

lifestyle shops in one stop.

Thus, the Major Pinklao

Standalone Cineplex has

quickly become a very

popular destination of

lifestyle entertainment

alternatives for Bangkok

dwellers ever since.  In the

Rangsit and recently.  The

latest Standalone Cineplex,

Esplanade Ngamwongwan-

Kaerai, was opened in

December 2009.

The Standalone Cineplex is

typically built on a long-

term leasehold land (20-30

year).  A Standalone

Cineplex is about 7-10 story

building.  The top floors

feature between 8-16

screens of cinemas and

20-38 lanes of bowling,

while the bottom 2-3 floors

are retails space for the

lifestyle shops.  With a

strong “movie culture”

which ensures continuous

flow of moviegoers traffic

every week, the retails

space in the Standalone

Cineplexes has been able to

sustain a high occupancy

rate in access of 90% and

above at all time.

Besides the Standalone

Cineplexes, MAJOR also

deploys three other

expansion models to

populate Cineplexes around

the country:

� Shopping mall model

� Lifestyle neighborhood

mall model

� Hypermarket model

The shopping mall model

was used more in the past

when the shopping malls

were sprouting up rapidly &

practically everywhere.  It

was a handy growth vehicle

as Cineplexes could ride on

their historically high

growth phase without too

much capital outlay as for

the Standalone Cineplex

model.  However, the rate

of growth for shopping

malls today has tapered

down significantly.

Nowadays, it takes 3-4 years

Major Cineplex Group Plc (MAJOR) is Thailand’s leading

Lifestyle Entertainment Company with core business in

cinema, bowling, karaoke, ice skating rink, retails space, film

distribution and advertising media.

To broaden its network of lifestyle entertainment portfolio as

well as establishing partnerships for sustainable future

growth, MAJOR also invests:

� 24.1% in Siam Future Development Plc (SF)

– a lifestyle-neighborhood-mall developer,

� 19% in California WOW Xperience Plc (CAWOW)

– an “exertainment” fitness club operator,

� 40.0% in Thai Ticket Major Co., Ltd. (TTM)

– a ticket sales channels for concerts, sports events,

transportation, etc.,

� 33.0% in Major Cineplex Lifestyle Property Fund (MJLF)

– a real-estate investment trust (REIT) set up as a vehicle

for the Group’s expansion,

� 65.93% in M Pictures Entertainment Plc. (MPIC),

– a integrated film distribution company. and

� 49% in PVR blu-O Entertainment Ltd.

– Joint Venture with PVR Ltd., a leading, premium multiplex

cinema exhibition company in India, to set-up bowling

alleys, karaoke centers and ice skating rinks across India.

MAJOR was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) in

May 2002.

M

“

“
subsequent 3 years, three

more Standalone

Cineplexes had been added

to the Cineplex network

around Bangkok – Major

Sukhumvit, Major

Ratchayotin, & Major

The Standalone “Cineplex” concept combines customer

experiences of Cinema & Entertainment complex under

the same roof.

Business Overview

cinema
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for a shopping mall to be

developed.

As an alternative vehicle for

growth, the lifestyle

neighborhood mall model

was created in 2004 when

MAJOR took a stake in a

lifestyle-neighbor-mall

developer, Siam Future

Development Plc. (Siam

Future).  A lifestyle

neighborhood mall is

typically built on a smaller

plot of land (1-2 acres)

next to the residential

areas.  Because of its

compact size, it takes only

6-12 months for a lifestyle

neighborhood mall

construction to complete,

thus serving as an excellent

vehicle to populate

Cineplexes in the

metropolitan areas as well

as more urbanized areas

around the country.

With the strong movie

culture and having

Cineplexes as anchor

tenant, Siam Future has

grown exponentially with

retails space increased by

over 10 folds to around

240,000sqm. in the past 5

years.  The synergy is

extremely well pronounced.

MAJOR could rapidly

penetrate into the

residential areas providing

an enhanced convenience

access to the moviegoers.

Siam Future, on the other

hand, could fill up its retails

space easily having cinema

& bowling anchoring in its

lifestyle neighborhood malls.

The hypermarket model is

used to populate the

Cineplexes in the provincial

areas.  MAJOR builds

cinemas & bowling in the

hypermarket structures as

an anchor tenant.  For the

provincial dwellers,

hypermarket or discount

store supercenter serves as a perfect destination, not only

for shopping but also for family entertainment, in a very

similar fashion as shopping malls are to the urban people.

MAJOR joins with two hypermarket operators, Tesco Lotus

& Big-C.

Currently MAJOR commands nearly 80% market share of

the Thai cinema industry’s admissions revenue.  The sharp

increase in market share in 2004 was due to the

acquisition of EGV Entertainment Plc., the #2 player at

that point with about 23% share.  Subsequent to that

M&A activity, there was no foreign cinema operator left in

the Thai cinema industry.

At year-end 2009, MAJOR operates 4 different brands:

� Major Cineplex

� EGV Cinemas

� Paragon Cineplex

� Esplanade Cineplex

with a total of 47 branches, 354 screens and about

88,250 seats.  MAJOR continues to add about 30-40 new

screens a year as Thailand is still in the “underscreened”

situation.  MAJOR deploys the 4 expansion models

discussed above as the growth vehicle depending upon

the demography of each location.

MAJOR offers cinema services covering the

full spectrum of the customer segments.

The mass-segment cinema, “Major

Cineplex” brand, is used for the

geographical expansion & tapping the new

markets.  Various international designs are

adopted for the customer experiences,

unlike what the global cinema operators

offer.  For example, Las Vegas style interior

design is adopted for the local mass-

segment customers to experience.

On the high-end, plenty of service &

product innovations are created and

installed for the “Future of Entertainment

Major Cineplex #screens #seats

Pinklao 13 4,200

Sukhumvit 8 1,800

Ratchayothin 15 3,800

Rungsit 16 3,500

Ramhumheang 7 2,100

Chiangmai 7 1,900

Rama III 9 1,800

Bangna 10 2,100

Samrong 12 2,400

Bangkapi 10 2,200

Rama II 9 2,700

Nakhon Sawan 5 1,100

Nonthaburi 7 1,050

Udon Thani 7 2,000

Chachoengsao 5 1,700

Fashion Island 11 2,400

Ubonrajathani 5 900

Petchakasem 6 1,700

Hua Hin 4 1,400

Samui 3 900

Pitsanulok 4 1,100

Changwattana 5 1,000

Pattaya 8 1,800

Chonburi 4 1,100

Krabi 4 1,100

Big C Navanakorn 3 800

Thanyaburi 4 1,100

Lotus Navanakorn 4 1,200

Banpong 5 1,450

Srinakarin 5 1,300

Salaya 5 1,200

Ayuttaya 4 1,300

Petchaboon 4 1,150

Amatanakorn 5 1,300

EGV Cinemas #screens  #seats

Central Pinklao 11 2,000

Seacon 14 3,300

Future Rangsit 10 1,700

Grand EGV 6 1,500

Bangkae 5 1,100

Ladprao 7 1,500

Korat 8 2,700

Sriracha 4 1,400

Metropolis 7 1,700

Aomyai 5 1,200

Paragon Cineplex #screens  #seats

Siam Paragon 16 4,600

Esplanade Cineplex #screens  #seats

Esplanade Ratchada 12 2,800

Esplanade 16 4,200

Ngamwongwan-Kaerai

Total 354 88,250

* At YE09, Seri Center with 6 screens, 1,000 seats was closed for

renovation and will reopen within 1H10.

Civilization” customer experiences in the “six-star” ambience at the

“Paragon Cineplex.”  For example, the “Nokia Ultra Screen 1” at the

Paragon Cineplex is equipped with nothing but fully-reclined, genuine

leather seats in cubicles along with pillows & blankets for the entire

auditorium seatings.

Another product innovation at the Paragon

Cineplex is the “ENIGMA: the Shadow

Screen”, a luxurious movie club exclusively

for members only. Thirty-four exclusive

seats, resembling living room couches

adjacent to an exclusive club equipped

with full bar services, are perfect for private

parties. The venue has become very

popular, not only among the high net-

worth individuals, but also the corporate

customers who prefer using the ENIGMA

for entertaining their VIP customers in an

exclusive atmosphere.
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“

Bowling & Karaoke was added to the

portfolio of lifestyle entertainment

services in 1997.  The first 20 lanes

were put up in Major Sukhumvit

Standalone Cineplex.  Rather than

being a typical sports bowling venue,

“Major Bowl Hit” was launched with an

“entertainment bowling” concept and

positioning, where friends & families

can come in & enjoy the game.  Major

Bowl Hit is decorated with a modern &

trendy design with the latest releases

of music being played, perfectly

enticing to the younger & family

segments of consumers.

“Major Karaoke” was a perfect

compliment of the entertainment

bowling as it provides, not only a

better utilization of the space, but

also another alternative form of

lifestyle entertainment.  Similar to

bowling, karaoke rooms are modernly

designed and decorated, perfect for

the segment of consumers that

bowling attract.

While “Major Bowl Hit” offers the

entertainment bowling to the mass

segment around the country, “Blu-O

Rhythm & Bowl” was introduced in

2006 as a “club fashion bowling,”

targeting at the higher-end of the

consumer segments in the metro

areas.  The first Blu-O Rhythm & Bowl

was put up in the Siam Paragon (a

mega shopping mall in the heart of

Bangkok) offering 38 bowling lanes,

12 karaoke rooms, and two Platinum

rooms equipped with 4 exclusive

bowling lanes each & karaoke facilities.

In 2009, MAJOR operates totally 5

branches under brand “Blu-O Rhythm

& Bowl,” comprising of Paragon,

Esplanade Ratchada, Pattaya,

Ratchayothin and Esplanade

Ngamwongwan-Kaerai.

The “sub-zero: the Ice Skate Club” is

the latest lifestyle entertainment that

had been added to the portfolio. It

has quickly become one of the most

popular meeting joints for the hip &

cool customer segments in town.

Locating in the Esplanade , Siam

Future’s newest Arte-tainment venue,

    bowling

karaoke

& ice skating

“

BUSINESSES

Business Overview
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Pinklao 20 15

Sukhumvit 20 10

Ratchayothin 38 28

Rungsit 26 18

Rama III 26 10

Bangna 18 14

Samrong 20 14

Bangkapi 14 12

Rama II 30 13

Fashion Island 16 13

Petchakasem 12 9

Changwattana 14 9

Ladprao 10 10

Piyarom 30 9

Thonglor (J-avenue) 8 11

Ayudhya 10 10

Nakhon Sawan 12 9

Udon Thani 16 9

Hua Hin 8 10

Samui 8 7

Pitsanulok 8 6

Pattaya 22 9

Chonburi 10 8

Central Pinklao - 21

Future Rangsit - 12

Grand EGV - 12

Siam Paragon 38 16

Esplanade Ratchada 22 21

Esplanade Ngamwongwan-Kaerai 24 13

Total 4 8 0 3 5 8

the first sub-zero offers a compact ice skating rink of about 700 sq.m. with

4 ice karaoke rooms, ice dance studio, & classes for ice-skating, figure-skating,

& ice hockey.  The second sub-zero was opened in Dec 2010 at Esplanade

Ngamwongwan-Kaerai.

In 2008, the concept of entertainment bowling was expanded internationally

into India. A joint venture company, PVR blu-O Entertainment Co. Ltd. (PVR

blu-O) was set up to operate entertainment bowling business in India in

partnership with PVR Limited, a leading cinema operator incorporated and listed

in Stock Exchange of India.  The first “Club Fashion Bowling” operated by PVR

blu-O has been commercially opened since March 2008 in Ambiance Mall -

Gurgaon, New Delhi with 24 lanes.

In 2008, the concept of

entertainment bowling was

expanded internationally

into India

“

“At year-end 2009, MAJOR operates 29

bowling locations with 480 lanes, 358

karaoke rooms, 2 ice skating rinks.

* In 2H09, three bowling branches (Aomyai, Chachoengsao, and

Seri Center) were closed down.

#bowling #karaoke

lanes rooms
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Advertising services business

leverage off the traffic that

cinema & other lifestyle

entertainments attract.

MAJOR had been able to

draw between 25-30 million

customers into the Cineplexes

around the country annually.

A subsidiary called CineAd

Co.,Ltd. has been established

to entice the advertisers and

media agencies with full-range

of advertising services,

ranging from simple cinema

screen advertising to fully-

integrated below-the-line

media solutions incorporating

all media available in the

Cineplex network around

the country.

BUSINESSES

With additional revenues being generated

on the existing assets, advertising services

revenues enjoy a hefty margin of 80-90%.

Today, CineAd packages integrate below-

the-line media solutions for many dominant

players in many industries. The solutions

include not only the screen advertising

but also new media like VDO walls,

tri-vision, plasma screens, poll signs,

bowling masking units, and outdoor

media (Billboard/Cut-out), etc.

As one of the most effective, direct-to-

target media alternatives, the cinemedia

is among the highest growth in the entire

media industry. For 2009, the cinemedia

contributes about 6% of the advertising

expenditures for the entire media industry.

advertising

   services

“

“

Business Overview
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Sukhumvit 6,625 98%

Ratchayothin 1,921 100%

Rangsit 1,564 100%

Ramhumheang 444 89%

Chiangmai 116 100%

Samrong 2,050 53%

Bangkapi 135 76%

Rama II 466 100%

Nakhon Sawan 190 100%

Udon Thani 351 100%

Samui 436 100%

Pitsanulok 186 100%

Future Rangsit 447 100%

Metropolis 14,416 90%

Aomyai 1,878 100%

Lad Prao 362 0%

Paragon 155 100%

Chonburi 115 0%

Thong Lor 335 100%

Ngamwongwan-Kaerai 11,330 77%

Suzuki Avenue 184 100%

Thanyaburi 106 0%

Lotus Navanakorn 99 100%

Seacon Square 95 100%

total 44,006 83%

In the Standalone Cineplex, MAJOR operates retail space

rental and services business to compliment the lifestyle

entertainment model by offering the customers with more

variety of entertainment service beyond movie, bowling,

karaoke, and ice skating.

MAJOR selects trendy brands that offer distinctive

products and services that match customers’ lifestyle.

Retails spaces are packaged in 2 types – long-term lease

contracts which are more than 3 years and short-term

rental contracts which are less than 3 years.

As the Cineplex has become “destination” for lifestyle

entertainment, MAJOR has been able to attract many

leading international chains as well as the newly emerging

local brands.   With the intense competition among the

quick-serve restaurant chains, every brand is in need of

new space to populate their new branches and expand

their network every year.  This has resulted in high

occupancy rate at every location.  Presently, MAJOR has a

total of 166 shops, occupying 83% of more than 44,000

sq.m available for rent or lease.  Services accompanied

space rental are the electricity, air-conditioned services,

fire protection system, cleaning and security system as

well as common area management services such as

elevator, escalator and parking.

“

“

        rental

& services

retails space

sq.m. %occupancy
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MAJOR has a strategic investment in the film

distribution business through its 65.93% stake in

M Pictures Entertainment Plc. (MPIC). Originally

MAJOR’s investments in film distribution business

were direct. On the theatrical side, MAJOR was

holding a stake in M Pictures Co., Ltd. (MP) which

was providing the upstream theatrical distribution

services. On the downstream home

entertainment distribution side, MAJOR held a

stake in Pacific Marketing and Entertainment

Group Co., Ltd. whose name has subsequently

been changed to MVD Co., Ltd. (MVD).

Completed in July 2009, both MP & MVD have

now been injected into MPIC to create an

integrated distribution company under one roof.

For the upstream theatrical distribution, MP is to

manage the 52-week films programming and

smoothen out the revenue seasonality imposed

by the Hollywood’s numerous summer releases in

2Q and holiday seasons releases in 4Q.

Distributing films from independent studios as well

as other Asian films from Japan & Korea, MP could

lessen the impacts of quarterly revenue shortfalls

by releasing these films in 1Q & 3Q.  With MAJOR’

s dominant market position in the exhibition

window, MP is riding on a solid platform to

maximize its revenue as well.

BUSINESSES

films

  distribution

“

“

For the downstream home entertainment

distribution, MVD is to manage the timing of

the DVD/VCD releases as well as the DVD/

VCD pricing in bid to optimize revenue

generating ability in each window and

protect the core cinema business.  With the

appropriate timing of the DVD/VCD releases

(typically 4-6 months subsequent to

theatrical releases) and with proper pricing,

a film can maximize its revenues in the

cinema window as well as in the home

entertainment distribution window itself.

In 2009, MPIC Group has also set up a film

production company, namely M Thirty-nine

Co. Ltd. (M39), to stimulate and advocate

growth in Thai films production. Leveraging

of MPIC’s own integrated distribution

capability, combining with MAJOR’s dominant

market share in cinema, the Group

ultimately aims to grow Thailand’s film

industry as a whole.

Business Overview
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“

      strategic

investments

“

Siam Future Development Plc (Siam Future)

MAJOR currently invests 24.1% in Siam Future, a lifestyle-neighborhood-mall developer.  The lifestyle

malls that Siam Future develops are low-rise, open-air building next to the residential areas.  The

rationale for the investment in 2004 was to help each other grow.  With the “movie culture,” MAJOR is an

anchor tenant that generate traffic to the lifestyle malls.  With its rapid pace of expansion, Siam Future

provides MAJOR with an excellent vehicle for growth, especially in the metropolitan areas where MAJOR

wants to improve cinema-access convenience to its customers.

Siam Future is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the symbol SF.

California WOW Xperience Plc (CAWOW)

At YE09, MAJOR invests 19% in CAWOW, an “exertainment” fitness club operator.  CAWOW’s philosophy

of running the fitness clubs is very similar to the way Major Bowl Hit is operated in that the clubs are

geared toward entertainment fitness.  The clubs are also modernly designed & decorated as a community

for the trendy new generation that has a high level of health consciousness.  CAWOW represents itself

with images of celebrities, rather than muscular men, selling hope to be fashionable & attractive.  Having

CAWOW in the Group provides MAJOR with another form of modern lifestyle entertainment and presents

Siam Future with another strong anchor tenant.

CAWOW is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the symbol CAWOW.

Thai Ticket Major Co.,Ltd. (TTM)

In June 2007, MAJOR took 40.0% stake in Thai Ticket Master Dot Com Co.,Ltd., whose name has

subsequently been changed to Thai Ticket Major Co.,Ltd. (TTM).  The rationale was to expand

MAJOR’s business into ticketing sales channel as well as enhancing value from the existing assets.

Cinema ticket box offices are turned into also ticketing services counters for concerts, sports events,

transportation.  Not only better utilization of the resources at the box offices, TTM also generates

additional traffic into the Cineplexes which could also be enticed to consume other entertainment

services.

Major Cineplex Lifestyle Property Fund (MJLF)

A major milestone that took place also in June 2007 was the completion of the REIT, Major Cineplex

Lifestyle Property Fund (MJLF) managed by ING Funds.  Two of the Standalone Cineplexes (Major

Ratchayotin & Major Rangsit) were initially injected into the MJLF, raising Bt2.3 billion in cash.  With

the proceed, MAJOR reinvests 33% back into the fund, while the remaining amount is being

reinvested into a brand-new Standalone Cineplex in Ngamwongwan-Kaerai area and a new lifestyle

mall, Major Avenue @ Ratchayotin, a 50:50 joint venture between MAJOR & Siam Future.

This development marks an important step for the Group as MJLF becoming a vital vehicle for

sustainable future growth.  MAJOR can now expand with the original Standalone Cineplex model

without fresh capital calls.  The Standalone Cineplexes with much larger number of cinema screens &

bowling lanes are expected to drive higher rate of growth for the income statements than the

balance sheets, enabling MAJOR to adopt the “asset-light” strategy with hope to generate higher

rate of returns going forward.

MJLF is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the symbol MJLF.

PVR blu-O Entertainment Ltd.

A 51:49 joint venture company, namely PVR blu–O Entertainment Ltd. (PVR blu-O), was set up in

2008 by PVR Limited & MAJOR.  Incorporated and listed in the Stock Exchange of India; PVR is a

leading, premium multiplex cinema exhibition company, fully integrated throughout the film industry.

While adding a new lifestyle entertainment to PVR’s business model, PVR blu-O is to introduce a new

experience of entertainment bowling to the Indian patrons and provide MAJOR with an opportunity

to unlock potential growth the Indian market has to offer.  The initial capital of PVR blu-O is INR 90

million. MAJOR has already paid-up for its 49% stake in 2008.

In a Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 13 November 2009, the Board has approved the investment

in ordinary shares of PVR Limited with the total investment value not exceeding THB 450 million and

not exceeds 15 percent of total paid-up shares of PVR.  The Board of Directors’ Meeting has

approved the investment in the 2,557,000 newly issued ordinary shares of PVR Limited (“PVR”)

through a preferential basis at the price of Rs.165 per share or equivalent to THB125.04 per share

(represents 10% of the paid up capital of PVR shares). The remaining investment will be purchased

through the secondary market.  As of YE09, PVR is under registration process for the increased

share capital.  Thus, such payment is recorded as advance for share subscription.

Both of these investments (in PVR and PVR blu-O) can be considered as a great opportunity to tap

into the enormous growth potentials that the Indian market has to offer.
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BUSINESSES

Risk

Risk from

films

release

Risk from

competition

isks that MAJOR incurs in

conducting its businesses can

be classified as followed.

R

Factors

Cinema exhibitors

rely on steady flow

of film releases as

main source of

revenue. Approxi-

mately, 45% - 50% of MAJOR’s total

revenues comes from revenue sharing

of the movie admissions tickets sales,

which depend on the number of films

release and the films popularity.  At

present, cinema is the first and most

important distribution window that

films producers and distributors rely on

in order to boost further sales in the

downstream home entertainment

market, such as VCD and DVD.

Accordingly, trade among exhibitors,

producers, and distributors are highly

interdependent, all aim to maximize

revenues to alleviate the risk of

relying on the popularity of a single

film.

MAJOR currently underscores its

leadership position in the market with

a firm market share of about 80%.

Bargaining power with film producers

and distributors has been enhanced

over the years.  The Films Distribution

Group has also been strategically

restructured and expanded to best

strategize with the core cinema

business by creating an integrated

films distribution company.  In addi-

tion, MPIC Group has also set up a film

production company, namely M

Thirty-nine Co. Ltd. (M39), to

stimulate and advocate growth in

Thai films production. MAJOR’s vertical

integration into film distribution

businesses also alleviates the risk in

films reliance as MAJOR’s own distribu-

tion companies can release their own

films during the “off-peak” seasons

where there are less selection of

Hollywood films.

MAJOR also deploying prepaid card,

such as “m-cash” and “gift card”, to

provide ticketing convenience for

customers via Internet ticketing and/

or Automatic Ticketing Machines

rather than having to queue-up in

long lines at the conventional box

office.  It is also a “forward CRM” tool

as the prepaid cards keep moviegoers

coming back to redeem at our

Cineplexes regardless of the film

selection.  MAJOR recognizes and

rewards its prepaid moviegoers with

extra services, such as seat upgrades,

blanket service, etc.  Thus,

occupancy rate can be managed

more efficiently regardless of the film

selection.

With

respect

to compe-

tition

among

the Thai

cinema operators, MAJOR is

the leader in the industry, both in

number of screens and abilities to

innovate new services and cinema

experiences.  MAJOR, with better

access to capital, has also continuously

expanded new branches using the

four expansion models to populate
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there are sufficient streams of cash

flows that uphold the 5-year payback

policy.  If not, then business model is

adjusted, i.e. increase/reduce screens

to reach critical mass or reduce rental

charges, add bowling or retails space

to help with the cash flow, etc.

These are the standard practice that

is performed for any new location.

Investments only take place for the

ones with high potentials for return.

MAJOR’s expansion partners, Siam

Future, the hypermarkets and the

shopping mall operators, also provide

us with a good check-and-balance in

demographical study.

MAJOR has been established and

successfully managed by Mr. Vicha

Poolvaraluck.  MAJOR is arguably relied

on his profound experiences and

reputation which may implies that risk

from his shareholding stake divestment

in MAJOR and/or resignation seems to

be inevitable.  However, Mr. Vicha

Poolvaraluck is not only the founder

of MAJOR, but also possessing strong

passions to driving MAJOR to higher

prosperity for over a decade.  In

addition, MAJOR is still in its adolescent

stage of development with a bright

future and strong growth prospects

ahead.  Logically there is no reason

for him to abruptly abandon this

investment.

Every

building

and

structure

has a risk

from fire

accident.  MAJOR has entered into

various insurance policies including a

fire case pursuant to the nature and

general conditions of theatre business

which terms and amounts covers all

losses and damages that might be

arisen.

Risk from

new

expansion

Risk from

fire accident

Risk

from

terrorism

Risk from

contagious

disease

Cineplexes around the country.

Depending upon the demography,

Standalone model, Shopping mall

model, Lifestyle neighborhood mall

model and Hypermarket model are

deployed to tap new markets and

expand customer base.  Renovations

are done regularly at the existing

branches to keep up with customers’

changing lifestyles.  Although MAJOR

might be regarded as the distant

leader, it has never been complacent,

but consistently monitors expansion

and development of the competitors.

In addition, MAJOR also emphasizes

on building and maintaining its

customer base by consistently

deploying marketing campaigns and

leveraging on the Group’s variety of

lifestyle entertainments services.

Consequently, MAJOR seems to be

better equipped with many competi-

tive edges, especially when compared

with other players.

A possible competitor of the cinema

business is VCDs and DVDs, both legal

and illegal.  However, it is not perceived

as direct threats to MAJOR’s revenues

and growth of the cinema business.

According to the research studies,

MAJOR’s customers are not only

interested in movie entertainment, but

also desire to consume other lifestyles

entertainments services offered by

the Group.  As for the illegal

distribution of VCDs and DVDs, the

Thai government and law enforcement

authority have increasingly taken a

more serious battle against the illegal

media with strong punishment.  It is

believed that the illegal distribution

will be at least contained, if not

completely eliminated.

Any new

expansion

faces

uncertainty

on its return

on invest-

ment.  However, MAJOR has on

average a payback period under 3-4

years and an internal rate of return of

15-20%.  Every new investment must

go through a market research and an

intense feasibility study to ensure that

The

insurgen-

cies and/

or acts of

terrorism,

such as

bomb

threats, usually have an immediate

psychological, but short-lived, impact

on MAJOR’s operation.  MAJOR has

always recognized the importance of

the security system and procedures

and closely followed any threat

through various news and intelligence

source.  Strict precautious measures

have been taken to prevent possible

disturbances at all branches.  Some of

the recent precautions to safeguard

customers’ lives and assets of all

parties are the installation of metal

detectors and wider & more thorough

CCTV network at all MAJOR branches.

With the

outbreak

of Swine

Flu

among

densely

populated areas around the world,

MAJOR has taken preemptive actions

by closely following the announce-

ments made by the Ministry of Public

Health and implementing preventive

measures by installing air purifiers,

distributing masks for customers and

spraying antibacterial disinfections on

the seats.

Risk from

management

reliance
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GOVERNANCE

Good Corporate

Governance
The Company is strongly committed to directing and operating its business by adhering to the Stock Exchange of

Thailand’s Good Corporate Governance (CG) practice guideline for listed companies. With this in mind, the Company’s

Board of Directors and the management has implemented, reviewing and improving good corporate governance

practice to ensure that the Company has an efficient and transparent management system. The Company also strongly

respects shareholders’ right and equal treatment towards shareholders; provides accurate, sufficient and timely disclo-

sure of significant information for the best benefits of shareholders; clearly defines qualifications of independent direc-

tors; appoints various committees; stipulates roles and responsibilities of its directors and top level management; and

continuously encourages directors and executives’ skill development. Such measures have been carried out to create

and strengthen confidence among the Company’s shareholders, investors, stakeholders and all concerned parties that

MAJOR’s business operations fully complies with good corporate governance practice and business ethics. The Company

shall be perceived as a quality listed company with high responsibility and transparency in all parts of its operation. In

2009, the Company has implemented and maintained good corporate governance practices, which can be divided into

5 sections as follows :

1.

Shareholders’

right

1.1) Shareholders’ right

protection policy

• The Company’s Board of Directors

formulates the shareholders’ right

protection policy in writing in 2009.

The policy emphasizes on allowing

shareholders to have equal rights to

have access to the Company’s

operational performance; participating

in various decision making; and

protecting, promoting, and encourag-

ing shareholders to fully exercise their

rights; and do not infringe sharehold-

ers’ rights. Key policies are as follows:

Policy on shareholders’ right

protection

1. The Board of Directors is respon-

sible for protecting and respecting

basic rights of the Company’s

shareholders, such as right to

purchase, sell or transfer shares, rights

to the Company’s profit sharing; rights

to obtain sufficient information about

the Company’s operation; rights to

attend the shareholders’ meeting to

appoint or terminate directors and

independent auditors, approve

dividend payment, formulate or

amend Article and Memorandum of

Association, and approve capital

increase or reduction and special

items.

2. The Board of Directors has duty to

promote and support shareholders to

exercise their right in various areas at

the Annual General Shareholders’

Meeting, including the right to

propose meeting agenda in advance,

the right to nominate persons as

directors, the right to submit ques-

tions to the Company prior to the

annual shareholders’ meeting and the

right to openly express opinions and

ask questions at the shareholders’

meeting.

3. The Board of Directors shall not

take any action which may infringe or

limit shareholders’ right.

4. The Board of Directors has

responsibility to facilitate the applying

of the shareholders’ rights such as

giving the significant information

updated via website, inviting the

shareholders to visit the theatre, etc.
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1.2) Allowing shareholders to

study information prior to the

shareholders’ meeting

• The Board of Directors and the

Company’s administration have

implemented a policy on shareholders’

right, which covers the areas beyond

those required by law, especially the

right to receive information and

significant information. At the Annual

General Meeting of the Shareholders

for the Year 2009 on 9 April 2009,

the Company provided sufficient

opportunity for shareholders to study

the information for 30 days prior to

the meeting date. The information

published on the Company’s website:

corporate.majorcineplex.com are as

follows :

1. Invitation to the Annual General

Meeting of the Shareholders for the

Year 2008

2. Attachment 1 : The minutes of

the Extraordinary General Meeting of

the Shareholders No.1/2008

3. Attachment 2 : Annual Report for

the Year 2008 in CD-ROM format

4. Attachment 3 : Financial

Statements for year ended 31

December 2008

5. Attachment 4 : Information about

net profit and dividend payment

allocation

6. Attachment 5 : Background of

directors who are nominated for

reappointment replacing directors

who retire at the expiration of their

terms, and directors’ authority

7. Attachment 6 : Directors remu-

neration details

8. Attachment 7 : List of indepen-

dent auditors and auditors’ remunera-

tion

9. Proxy form A (general)

10.Proxy form B (Ministry of

Commerce’s form)

11.Proxy form C (for custodian)

12.Independent directors’ details (for

proxy)

13.Document to confirm sharehold-

ers’ right to attend the meeting

14.The Company’s rules related to

shareholders’ meeting

15. Map of the meeting venue

• The information and document

were published in both Thai and

English languages and are the same as

the printed document mailed to

shareholders. Shareholders were

given sufficient time to study the

information before receiving the

printed document from the Company.

• In the meeting day, the

company facilitated shareholders to

exercise their rights to attend the

meeting by implementing a barcode

system for registration and vote

counting, as well as providing the

stamps for proxy authorization. The

label of registered shareholders was

provided for access convenience while

meeting, without timeless to recheck

their documents.

• After the Annual General

Meeting of the Shareholders for the

Year 2009, the Company compiled

the document, including agenda,

meeting resolutions, voting results,

questions and shareholders’ opinion

expressed at the meeting, and

prepared the “Annual General Meeting

of the Shareholders for the Year 2009

Minutes” for publishing on the

Company’s website.

1.3) Preventing limitation of

shareholders’ right

• In 2009, the Company’s Board

of Directors did not take any action

that might infringe or limit sharehold-

ers’ right to study information and

significant information as stated in the

Company’s policy on shareholders’

right protection. The Company has

published all the information on its

website prior to the Annual General

Meeting of the Shareholders for the

Year 2009. The Company did not

distribute additional document

containing significant information

during the meeting, or add or change

meeting agenda or amend significant

information without prior notice. The

Company also encouraged the

shareholders to exercise their rights

to openly and sufficiently question

the Company’s Board of Directors

during each agenda. The Board of

Directors also implemented measures

to prevent possible limitation of

shareholders’ right or limit the right of

the shareholders who arrived late to

attend the meeting.

1.4) Providing convenience in

shareholders’ right exercising

• The Company provided sufficient

convenience for shareholders and

shareholders’ proxy to register to

attend the meeting by implementing

a barcode system for registration and

vote counting as well as distributing

voting ballots to the shareholders

before the meeting began.

• The Company clearly stated

shareholders’ meeting rules and

process in the meeting invitation. The

moderator of the meeting also

informed the attending shareholders

of the rule and voting process at the

meeting. The shareholders’ meeting

minutes also included a record that

the meeting was informed of the

rules and voting process.

• The Company invited its share-

holders to exercise their right to site

visit. The company also regularly

updates information and significant

information published on its website.

1.5) Giving sufficient time and

opportunity for shareholders to

express their opinions

• The Company provided opportu-

nity for shareholders to ask questions

related to the meeting agenda or the

Company, and openly express their

opinion. The Chairman of the Board of

Directors asked the meeting at the

end of each agenda. Questions

related to the meeting agenda or the

Company and shareholders’ opinion,

as well as the answers or clarification

by the Board of Directors or the

Company’s management were all

recorded in the meeting minutes.

• The Company arranged for voice

recording of the shareholders’

meeting, and disclosed the significant

issues raised during the meeting in

the meeting minutes for reference in

the future and enable shareholders

who could not attend the meeting to

catch up with the meeting details.

1.6) Meeting attendance of

directors

• With fully respect of sharehold-

ers’ right, all the 11 members of the

Board of Directors attended Annual
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General Meeting of the Shareholders

for the Year 2009. It could conclude

that the company still developed

organizing the 2009 Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders as more

strict than the CG guideline.

Equitable treatment towards minor

shareholders

• The Company allowed sharehold-

ers, individual or in groups holding

minor shares of at least 100,000

shares for no more than 12

consecutive months, to propose

meeting agenda 4 months prior to

the Annual General Meeting of the

Shareholders for the Year 2009 or

from 1 October 2009 to 31 January

2010. The criteria for proposing

meeting agenda in advance was

published on the Company’s website.

The Board of Directors’ Secretary was

assigned to compile the meeting

agenda and proposed to the indepen-

dent directors for consideration and

to make them the official meeting

agenda. In 2009, no shareholders

proposed meeting agenda.

• The Company open opportunity

for shareholders, individual or in

groups holding minor shares of at

least 100,000 shares for no more

than 12 consecutive months to

nominate persons to be appointed as

directors or submit questions related

to the meeting agenda to the

Company’s Board of Directors prior to

the Annual General Meeting of the

Shareholders for the Year 2009 or

from 1 October 2009 to 31 January

2010. The company’a secretary was

assigned to compile the nominated

persons’s details and proposed to the

nomination committee to consider

the qualifications of person nominated

by minor shareholders in accordance

with the company’s nomination

procedure.  In 2009, none of share-

holders made nomination.

• The Board of Directors arranged

the shareholders’ meeting according

to meeting agenda published on the

Company’s website in advance and

sent in document form to the

shareholders prior to the meeting

date and time. In order to allocate

appropriate time for consideration and

to conform to the meeting regulations,

the Company did not propose new

agenda during the meeting or

distribute additional document for

shareholders’ consideration without

prior notice.

• The Board of Directors encouraged

shareholders to select the proxy form

that provides them with freedom to

select voting decision – agree, not

agree, abstain, by preparing Proxy B

form. The Company also prepared the

Proxy A (general) and Proxy C (for

custodian) for its shareholders and

published them for easy download on

the Company’s website 30 days prior

to the meeting.

• The Board of Directors provided

convenience for shareholders who

could not attend the meeting but

wish to exercise their voting rights by

allowing them to assign proxy. The

Company arranged for 3 independent

directors to attend the meeting and

vote on behalf of the shareholders; (i)

Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn, Independent

Director and Chairperson of Audit

Committee (ii) 10 Mr. Wallop

Tangtrongchitr, Independent Director

and Audit Committee Member (iii) 11.

Mr. Naruenart Ratanakanok,

Independent Director and Audit

Committee Member. Shareholders can

appoint one of the two independent

directors as their proxy.

• The Board of Directors encour-

aged the meeting to use voting

ballots. Voting ballots were prepared

for each agenda, such as dividend

payment and independent auditor

remuneration, for transparency and

reference in case of objection later.

Conflict of interest prevention

• The Board of Directors formulated

measures and approval process for

related transaction between the

Company and its subsidiaries or other

persons who may have conflict of

interest. Persons with direct conflict

of interest are not allowed to

participate in the consideration and

decision making on the items they

may have conflict of interest. The

Audit Committee is required to

consider and provide opinion on the

necessity and justification of the items

for the best benefits of the Company.

The information about related

transaction is disclosed in the notes to

the financial analysis, which is prepared

in accordance with the generally

accepted accounting principles, in

Annual Report of the Year 2009 (in

Related transaction chapter) and the

Form 56-1.

3.1) Good corporate governance

policy related to stakeholders

• The Board of Directors has

stipulated good corporate governance

policies and measures related to

stakeholders as follows :

1. Employees and families

The Company sets policy on

treatment towards employees as

follows :

Policy on treatment towards

employees

1. The Company shall appropriately

reward employees by considering

each employee’s performance using

measurable tools and with fairness.

The rewards include monthly remu-

neration, overtime payment, bonus,

production reward, life and health

insurance and provident fund.

2. The Company shall promote and

develop employees’ knowledge and

skills, for example, by arranging

trainings and seminars for executives

and employees of all levels.

3. The Company shall fairly and equally

treat all employees, such as in

performance appraisal, work record

confidentiality, and employees’

benefits.

2. Equitable

treatment

towards

shareholders

3.

Roles of

stakeholders
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4. The Company shall respect employ-

ees’ right and provide opportunities

for employees to speak up in case

they are not treated properly by

providing comment box or through

Human Resources Department.

5. The Company shall provide safe

and hygienic work environment that

enhance work efficiency and effec-

tiveness.

2. Customers and creditors

The Company sets policy on treatment

towards customers as follows :

Policy on treatment towards

customers

1. The Company has the duty to build

good relationship and long-term

cooperation with its customers based

on integrity and trust.

2. The Company shall create maxi-

mum customer satisfaction with

sufficient and appropriate responsibi-

lity and care, as well as giving priority

to customers’ problems and needs.

The management and all employees

shall respect the following measures:

• Committed to delivering quality

products that directly meet the

customers’ requirement.

• Respect the conditions agreed with

the customers.

• Equally propose price and trade

conditions to customers in the same

category.

• Provide the customers with accu-

rate information about the product

quality and qualifications to ensure

confidence and fairness to the

Company’s customers.

• Willing to address customers’ needs

and concerns as well as to handle

complaints, to recommend and to

monitor progress of the matters

informed by the customers.

Creditors

The Company sets policy on treatment

towards creditors as follows :

Policy on treatment towards creditors

1. The Company shall build relation-

ship with and treat creditors with

integrity and trust.

2. The Company shall be responsible

for and best respect all conditions

agreed with the creditors.

3. Shareholders

The Board of Directors has formulated

policy related to shareholders as

follows :

Policy on treatment towards share-

holders

1. The Company has duty to protect

and respect basic rights of sharehold-

ers which are the right to purchase or

transfer shares; the right to receive

the Company’s profit share, the right

to receive sufficient information about

the Company’s operation; the right to

participate in the shareholders’

meeting to appoint or terminate

directors, appoint external auditor,

approve dividend payment, allocate

annual net profit, set or amend Article

or Memorandum of Association, capital

increase or decrease and approve

special items.

2. The Company has the right to

promote and encourage shareholders

to exercise their right at the Annual

General Shareholders’ Meeting,

including the right to propose agenda

in advance, the right to nominate

directors in advance, the right to

propose questions to the meeting

prior to the meeting date, and the

right to express opinion and ask

questions in the meeting.

3. The Company shall not take any

action that may infringe or limit the

shareholders’ right.

4. Business partners

The Company sets policy on treat-

ment towards business partners as

follows :

Policy on treatment towards business

partners

1. The Company is responsible for

building good relationship with every

business partner.

2. The Company is responsible for

providing equal opportunity for each

business partner to propose products

and services. The Company’s

management and employees who are

responsible for dealing with customers

shall follow the measures below :

• Equally and fairly treat all business

partners.

• Considering and making decision by

comparing quality of products and

related conditions for the best

benefits of the Company in both

short and long term.

• Keeping confidentiality in relations to

customers, not accepting bribes or

commissions from business partners

and not disclose information or one or

many business partners to other

partners.

5. Analysts, Investors and Financial

Institutions

The Company sets policy on treat-

ment towards Analysts, Investors and

Financial Institutions as follows :

Policy on treatment towards business

partners

1. The Company provide information

to Analysts, Investors and Financial

Institutions including the information

about the financial performances,

business outlook accordance with the

regulations and good corporate

governance policy.

2. All information including the news

that might affect investment decision

will be provided in the corporate

website and

3.2) Compensation to stakehold-

ers in case of damage caused by

infringement

• The Board of Directors has imple-

mented measures on the use of

internal information that directors,

executives and the Company’s

employees shall follow which are

Measures on preventing the use of

internal information by directors,

executives and employees

1. The Board of Directors’ Secretary is

responsible for reporting to the

Company’s directors and the

management the shareholdings of the

directors and executives, spouses and

children who have not yet reached

manhood, and report the changes in

shareholdings according to the article

59 and punishment article 275 of the

Securities and Exchange Act B.E.

2535.

2. The Board of Directors shall advise

directors, executives and employees

who have access to significant internal

information to avoid trading the

Company’s shares one month before

and one week after the distribution

of such significant information,
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including financial statements which

affect changes in share prices. This is

to avoid possible frauds under the

Securities and Exchange Act.

• The Company has stipulated the

measures to prevent directors and

the Company’s executives from using

internal information for own or others’

benefits. The measures are stated in

the Company’s Code of Ethics for the

Management and Employees which

are as follows :

Measures on preventing conflict of

interest of directors, executives and

employees

1. The Company’s management and

employees shall not take any action

for personal benefits or to obtain

assets of the Company or customers.

2. The directors and employees shall

not be engaged in or have own

business or activities that may cause

conflict of interest that may conflict

with the responsibilities of the

directors and employees.

3. In case that the position and

responsibilities of the executives and

employees may directly or indirectly

provide benefits to themselves or

members of their family (spouse,

father, mother, children, cousins) or

acquaintance, the directors and

employees shall not be involved in

decision making and immediately

report to their immediate supervisors.

4. The Company shall avoid assigning

the directors or employees to perform

a task that may lead to a situation

that causes conflict of interest to the

Company or the Company’s customers.

5. In case the Company’s directors

and employees are involved in

external activities or hold positions in

other organizations, such as being

directors, advisors, representatives or

employees, such condition must not

cause direct or indirect conflict of

interest to the Company and its

customers or affect the persons’

ability to perform their duty.

6. Directors and employees are not

allowed to work for or hold positions

in other organizations which operate

similar business or compete with or

may have conflict of interest with the

Company.

• The Company’s Board of Directors

has consistently received information

about possible conflict of interest of

directors, executives and employees

in the Company’s transactions. The

Internal Audit Department is respon-

sible for reporting information related

to conflict of interest to the Audit

Committee for acknowledgement and

consideration and the Audit Commit-

tee consistently monitor, review and

report the information to the Board

of Directors for acknowledgement

and consideration. In 2009, there is

no report that the Company’s

directors, executives and employees

having conflict of interest that causes

damage to the Company.

• The Company has stipulated the

following measures on compensating

stakeholders in case of damage due

to infringement.

1. Employees and families

Measures to prevent damage from

employees’ rights infringement

The Company has arranged for

sufficient remuneration and benefits

for its employees and strictly followed

the treatment towards employees

policy. A comment box is provided for

employees as a channel to receive

complaints and recommendation from

employees affected by unpleasant

work conditions.

In 2009, there is no employees’

complaint related to infringement.

2. Customers

Measures to prevent damage from

customers’ rights infringement

The Company has taken good care of

its customers in accordance with its

treatment towards customers policy.

Customer Liaison unit was set up as a

channel for customers to file com-

plaint in case they have problems and

need help. Customers affected by

infringement can contact the Cus-

tomer Liaison through 2 channels

which are via telephone to contact

the Marketing Department or via the

Company’s website.

3. Creditors

Measures to prevent damage from

creditors’ rights infringement

The Company has implemented

measures to prevent damage caused

by creditors’ rights infringement. The

management has carefully considered

and studied each creditor’s qualifica-

tion, based on integrity and credibility,

before transaction to prevent future

problems.

So far, the Company has never

received complaints from creditors

about damage caused by infringe-

ment.

4. Shareholders

Measures to prevent damage from

shareholders’ rights infringement

The Company has implemented

measures in protecting the basic

rights of shareholders, including the

right to receive information, and the

right to participate in shareholders’

meeting, and encouraging sharehold-

ers to exercise their rights beyond

those required by law, such as to

propose meeting agenda in advance

to the meeting date, and nominating

persons to be elected as directors in

advance.

The Company shall evaluate and

monitor the results of the implemented

measures in order to prevent possible

damages from shareholders’ rights

infringement. The evaluation shall be

done internally through departments

which are responsible for shareholders’

rights protection, and externally

through the AGM Checklist program

organized on annual basis by the SEC,

Thai Investors Association and the

Association of Listed Companies.

In 2009, there is no shareholders’

complaint related to right infringe-

ment nor limitation.

5. Analysts, Investors and

Financial Institutions

Measures to prevent damage from

Analysts, Investors and Financial

Institutions’ rights infringement

The Company provide information to

Analysts, Investors and Financial

Institutions including the information

about the financial performances,

business outlook at least once a

quarter or not less than 4 times per

year. In addition, The information are

provided in several channels such as

IR line (02-511-5427 ext. 893),

corporate website, one-on-one

meeting, group meeting and site visit.
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3.3) Stakeholders’ participation

mechanism

• The Board of Directors has set

mechanism for stakeholders’

participation as follows :

1. The Company provided a box to

receive comment, complaints or

opinion at the front of the office.

2. The Company provided opportuni-

ties for investors to express their

opinions to the Board of Directors

through the Company’s website,

under Investers Relations (IR) section.

3.4) Mechanism for protection of

those who report frauds

• The Board of Directors provided

various channels for report on frauds,

unethical or illegal practice related to

financial statements and internal

contort system through the Internal

Audit Department via telephone or

the Company’s website.

• The Board of Directors ensured that

the persons who report frauds would

be well protected by keeping all

information about the reporting

person highly confidential.

• The Board of Directors has stipu-

lated an effective process to handle

the reports irregularity. Initially, the

Internal Audit Department will make a

summary and submit it to the Audit

Committee for further investigation

and report to the Board of Directors

in case the matters are true and may

have impact on the Company’s

operation.

4.1) Results of the execution of

corporate governance policy

• The Company reported accurate,

appropriate and timely quarterly and

annually for 2009 financial statements

as well as other information through

various channels for shareholders,

investors and stakeholders to equally

reach the information. In 2009, the

Company accurately, adequately,

timely and transparently disclosed the

information required by the SEC and

SET through SET’s online channel and

the Company’s website. The Com-

pany has never been punished by the

SEC or SET for not disclosing the

information as required. The Company

also regularly appraises the efficiency

of information disclosure process and

strictly follows the regulations on

information disclosure.

• The Company also published and

regularly updated all significant

information submitted to the SET and

other information on its website as

well as provided such information

both in Thai and English for all

stakeholders to have equal access to

the information.

4.2) Remuneration of the direc-

tors and the management

• The Remuneration Committee

formulated the 2009 policy on

remuneration of directors, Chief

Executive Officer and top executives

as follows:

Policy on remuneration of directors,

Chief Executive Officer and top

executives

1. Remuneration of the Company’s

directors, Chief Executive Officer and

top executives shall be set in

accordance with their duty, scope of

responsibility, fairness and attractive-

ness, which should be equal to

remuneration for directors in other

listed companies in the same industry

and similar size, as well as the

Company’s performance, business

environment and overall economic

condition

2. The Remuneration Committee shall

be responsible for initial consideration

and propose for the approval of the

Board of Directors and the Annual

General Meeting of the Shareholders

the maximum remuneration of the

year, position remuneration and

meeting allowance

3. The Remuneration Committee shall

respect the resolution of the Annual

General Meeting of the Shareholders

on the remuneration budget and

details which are also disclosed in the

annual report. Remuneration that the

directors received from positions in

other companies, such as consultancy

fee, and directorship in the Company’

s subsidiaries shall also be disclosed.

4. Any director who currently holds

management position in the Company

and receives remuneration in the

forms of monthly salary will not be

entitled for the remuneration.

• The Remuneration Committee

proposed to the Board of Directors

and the Annual General Meeting of

the Shareholders for the Year 2009

to approve a total of no more than

Baht 9.6 million remunerations for the

non-executive directors. Remunerations

for the directors are shown in

remunerations of borad of directors

section. The Company’s directors who

also hold directorship in subsidiaries did

not receive remunerations from the

subsidiaries.

4.3) Board of Directors Report

• The Company prepared the Board

of Directors’ responsibility towards

financial statements together with

the independent auditor’s report

(published in the annual report under

chapter Board of Dierctors’ responsibil-

ity towards financial statements).

4.4) Roles and duties of the

Board of Directors and

Committees

• The Company’s Board of Directors

appointed committees to assist the

Board in studying details, monitoring

and supervising the Company’s

operations, as well as screening

assigned tasks. Scope of authority,

duty and responsibilities are clearly

stated.

Board of Directors

• In 2009, the Board of Directors

convened 5 times. All meetings were

arranged in compliance with the

Company’s Article of Association and

the Public Limited Company Act B.E.

2535. Meeting invitation and related

significant information were distrib-

uted to the directors 10 days prior to

the meeting. The Board also provided

adequate and equal opportunities for

the directors to discuss significant

issues. The Board of Directors’

Secretary and legal advisor attended

and recorded the meeting, questions,

4. Information

disclosure and

transparency
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Board of Directors’

2009 Annual

Name Position meeting/

General Meeting

Total 5 Meetings

1. Mr.Somchainuk Engtrakul Chairman 4/5 �

2. Mr.Vicha Director 5/5 �

3. Mr.Verawat Ongvasith Director 5/5 �

4. Mrs.Paradee Poolvaraluck Director 5/5 �

5. Mr.Thanakorn Puliwekin Director 5/5 �

6. Mr.Panithan Sethabura** Director 2/5 �

7. Pol.Sub.Lt. Kriengsak Lohachala* Director/Independent Director 2/5

8. Mr.Wichai Poolvaraluck Director/Independent Director 5/5 �

9. Mr.Chai Jroongtanapibarn Independent Director 5/5 �

Chairperson of Audit Committee

10. Mr.Wallop Tangtrongchitr Independent Director 5/5 �

Audit Committee Member

11. Mr.Naruenart Ratanakanok Independent Director 5/5 �

Audit Committee Member

12. Mr.Athasith Damronggrat Independent Director 5/5 �

Pol.Sub.Lt. Kriengsak Lohachala* has been appointed as the new director effective from 25 June 2009.

Mr. Panithan Sethabutra** has resigned from a post of director effective from 29 May 2009.

Rank Audit committee Audit committes’ Meeting

/Total 12 Meetings

1 Mr. Chai Jroongtanapibarn 12/12

2 Mr. Wallop Tangtrongchitr 11/12

3 Mr. Naruenart Ratanakanok 11/12

and recommendations by the

directors in order to allow directors

and concerned parties to study and

audit. Directors’ attendance is as

follow table.

• In 2009, the Board of Directors

organized 1 Annual General Meeting

of the Shareholders for the year 2009

on 9 April 2009. Directors’ attendance

is as follows:

The Company’s top executives

responsible for finance, auditor and

legal advisors also attended the

Annual General Meeting of the

Shareholders.

Executive Committee

• The Company disclosed the opinions

of the Board of Directors, and

committees on their performance by

preparing Message from the Chairman

of the Board of Directors, Message

from the Chief Executive Officer, the

Audit Committee Report, the

Nomination Committee Report, and

the Remuneration Committee Report,

which are published in the annual

report.

Executive Committee

• In 2009, the Executive Committee

performed its duties in managing the

Company’s operation; reviewing

policies, business plan, investment

plan, and annual budget plan to

present to the Board of Directors for

approval; monitoring, supervising and

controlling the execution of plans to

achieve the preset goals earlier

approved by the Board of Directors or

as assigned; and reporting the

quarterly and annual operational

performance to the Board of Directors

for acknowledgement. The Executive

Committee also provided its opinion

on the committee’s performance in

the Message from the Chief Executive

Officer as published in the annual

report.

Audit Committee

• The Audit Committee performed its

duties in reviewing the financial

statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries, auditing the internal

control report submitted every month

by the Internal Audit, meeting with

independent auditors to discuss

various matters. The Audit Committee

Chairman reported significant matters

to the Board of Directors for consider-

ation by including those matters as

meeting agenda. The Audit Commit-

tee also provided its opinion in the

Audit Committee Report as published

in the annual report.

• In 2009, the Audit Committee

convened 12 times and committee

members’ attendance is as follows :
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Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

In 2009, the Nomination

Committee performed its duties in

nominating 4 director to replace a

director who left office at the end of

their terms. The committee

considered the qualifications,

knowledge, capability, experience,

good work history, and ethics. As a

result, the 4 directors were nominated

to be re-elected, which was approved

by the Board of Directors and the

annual general shareholders’ meeting.

In 2009, the Nomination Committee

convened twice. All committess

attend the meetings.

In 2009, the Remuneration

Committee performed its duties in

setting remunerations for directors

who are not the Company’s execu-

tives or employees for the year 2009,

remunerations for committees for the

year 2009, by considering their

duties, scope of responsibilities, which

are equal to the remunerations paid

to directors in listed companies of the

same size and in the same industry, as

well as considering the Company’s

performance, business environment

and the overall economy. The

remunerations were submitted to the

Board of Directors and the Annual

General Meeting of the Shareholders

for approval. In 2009, the Remunera-

tion Committee convened twice. All

committess attend the meetings.

4.5) Relationship with sharehold-

ers

• The Company’s Board of Directors

formulated a policy to accurately,

adequately, transparently and timely

disclose reliable significant information

and information that may affect the

Company’s share price. It assigned

the Investors Relations to be the

Company’s representative in

communicating to institute and

individual investors as well as analysts

and concerned government agencies.

The Company’s website

(corporate.majorcinplex.com) is used

as a channel to distribute all informa-

tion, including the information about

the Company, business, financial

information, news that may affect

investment decision, reports submit-

ted to the SET, the Company’s

activities, and shareholders’ meeting

details, to enable shareholders to

keep updated of the Company’s

movement and required information.

The Investors Relations is directly

responsible for information provision.

Investors may contact the Investors

Relations through 2 channels ;

telephone and email :

ir@majorcineplex.com.

• The Company prepared a rough

investors relations plan which is

subjected to change depending on

conditions and environment as follows :

1. Organize a quarterly analysts

meeting. The Company will also

organize a meeting between its

Investors Relations and analysts when

analysts need more information on

additional matters.

2. Arrange roadshows at least once a

year to provide information to

domestic and overseas investors.

3. Participate in exhibitions held to

provide information to investors, such

as the exhibitions arranged by SET,

Brokers’ Association and other

organizations.

5.1) Policy on Good Corporate

Governance

• The Company’s Board of Directors is

committed to directing the business

in compliance with the good corpo-

rate governance which is beneficial

and important to promote efficiency

and transparency of the Company’s

operation, increase competitive

advantages, and add long-term value

to the shareholders. The Board of

Directors and the administration have

formulated good corporate gover-

nance practice and made them the

Company’s policy in writing. The

Board of Directors approved the policy

which has essence as follows :

1. Respecting shareholders’ right on

various matters, including allowing

shareholders to propose agenda in

advance for the shareholders’

meeting, and nominating in advance

persons to be selected as directors,

etc. and not taking any action which

may infringe or limit the rights of

shareholders.

2. Equitably and fairly treating all

shareholders, investors, stakeholders

and related parties.

3. Accurately, adequately, equitably,

and timely disclosing information to

shareholders, investors, stakeholders

and related parties through

appropriate channels, including

website, to enable shareholders and

stakeholders to have easy access to

the information.

4. Performing its duties and

responsibility in supervising and

directing the operations of the

Company with integrity, ethics and

prudence to achieve the Company’s

goal and for the best benefits of the

Company and its shareholders, as well

as preventing conflict of interests.

5. Managing the Company with

transparency under sufficient internal

control and audit system.

6. Controlling and managing risks at

the appropriate level.

7. Operating the Company with

integrity and in compliance with laws

and business ethics.

5.2) Structure of the Board of

Directors and Committees

• The Board of Directors viewed that,

considering its current scope of

responsibilities, it is appropriate to

have 11 members who have different

qualifications, skills, experience and

specialization that will benefit the

Company, and ability to contribute

time and efforts to perform duty to

strengthen the Board of Directors.

• The Board of Directors gives priority

to transparency and therefore

stipulated that the Board of Director

Chairman is an independent director

and shall not be the same person as

the Chief Executive Officer or President.

• The Board of Directors stipulated a

formal and transparent process of

directors nomination which is free

5. The Board

of Directors’

Responsibilities
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from influence from shareholders with

control authority. The Nomination

Committee shall nominate directors by

considering education, capability,

experience, etc. in accordance with

the scope of responsibilities of the

Board of Directors or committees.

The nominee list will be proposed to

the Board of Directors’ consideration

and appointment.

• The Board of Directors disclosed the

list of the directors and committee

members in terms of names, posi-

tions, age, education, shareholdings,

work experience and relationship with

the Company’s executives in various

channels, including the annual report

and the Company’s website.

5.3) Leadership and vision

• The Board of Directors has strong

leadership, vision and independence in

making decision for the best benefit

of the Company and its shareholders.

Roles and responsibilities of each

committee are clearly separated. The

Administration is responsible for

compiling necessary information for

the Board of Directors’ consideration.

• With a goal to ensure stable

business with long-term sustainability

and success, the Board of Director, in

cooperation with the management in

reviewing and ensuring that vision and

mission best address the changing

environment. The business goals,

business plan and budget were

prepared by taking into consideration

the maximum added value and

long-term stability of the Company

and its shareholders. The Board of

Directors also direct the business and

ensure that the business operation

is efficiently executed by the

management.

• The Board of Directors encouraged

good corporate governance within

the organization and formulated good

corporate governance practice, code

of ethics, measures and approval

procedure of related transaction

between the Company and related

parties or persons who may have

conflict of interest, as well as clearly

separated the authority of sharehold-

ers from that of the Board of

Directors and between the Board of

Directors and the executives and

other committees, in order to create

balance of power and independence

and transparency.

5.4) Conflict of interest

• The Board of Directors shall consider

related transaction that may cause

conflict of interest between

shareholders, directors and the

management with best prudence,

integrity, reasonableness and

independence within good business

ethic framework, and disclose com-

plete information for the best benefit

of the Company. The Board of

Directors shall strictly conform to the

criteria and procedures or regulations

set by SET and ask the Audit

Committee to provide information

about the necessity and appropriate-

ness of such transaction.

• The Board of Directors formulated

measures and approval procedure of

related transaction between the

Company and its subsidiaries or

persons who may have conflict of

interest. The persons who may have

direct and indirect conflict of interest

shall not be allowed to make decision

on the matter. The Audit Committee

is required to participate in the

consideration and provide opinions on

the necessity and reasonableness of

the items proposed for the best

benefits of the Company. The Board

of Directors also required the related

transactions to be disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements

prepared by using the generally

accepted accounting principles

published in the annual report and

the Form 56-1.

5.5) Business ethics

• The Board of Directors prepared the

Management and Employees’ Code of

Ethics for the Company’s management

and employees to use as guideline in

performing their duties and to strictly

and consistently implement in terms

of business operations, equitable and

fair treatment towards stakeholders,

matters related to conflict of interest,

information confidentiality and possible

fraudulent use of information, bribes,

and gifts. The Board of Directors

assigned the Internal Audit unit to

monitor and audit the implementation

of Code of Ethics.

• The Board of Directors shall monitor

and ensure that the Company’s

business operation, directors’ ability to

perform their duties, operation by the

management, and employees’ work

are within ethical framework in

addition to the Company’s regulations

and related laws.

5.6) Balance of power for non-

executive directors

• The Board of Directors structure

comprises 6 non-executive and

independent directors and 5 execu-

tive directors. As of 31 December

2009, the Company has 11 members

of the Board of Directors. The

balance of power by non-executive

directors is as follows :

Executive directors 5 persons (45

percent)

Non-executive and independent

directors 6 persons (55 percent)

5.7) Integration or segregation

positions for managerial balance

of power

• The Board of Directors clearly divides

scopes of roles and responsibilities

among the Board of Directors,

Executive Committee, Audit

Committee, Nomination Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Risk

Management Committee, as well as

the Chief Executive Officer with a

clear stipulation that the Chairman of

the Board of Directors shall not be

the same person as the Chairman of

the Executive Committee or Chief

Executive Officer and shall not have

any relations with the management in

order to prevent any executive to

have unlimited power and to enable

managerial balance of power and

cross checking.

5.8) Role and responsibilities of

the Board of Directors

• In 2009, the Board of Directors

reviewed and approved significant

operational matters and directed the

management to efficiently implement

the policy and effectively manage the

budget.

• The Board of Directors reviewed the

approved written good corporate

governance policy at least once a year.
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• The Board of Directors prepared and

distributed the Code of Ethics in

writing to directors, executives and

employees; and reviewed other ethics

for directors, executives and

employees to understand ethical

standards applied to its business

operation. The Board of Directors

assigned the Internal Audit

Department to monitor the execution

of such standards.

• The Board of Directors provided

financial statement control and

regulations implementation. The

Internal Audit Department

independently performed its duty in

monitoring the implementation of

these regulations and control

measures and reviewed the system at

least once a year.

5.9) The Board of Directors’

meeting

• The Board of Directors convened at

least 4 times a year and arranged the

meeting in accordance with the

Company’s rules, the Public Limited

Company Act B.E. 2535 and SET’s

regulations. The Chairman of the

Board of Directors, in the capacity of

the meeting chairman, shall promote

prudence in any consideration,

provide sufficient time for the

management to present significant

information and for directors to

discuss the matter. Meeting minutes

for every meeting was made for

future reference and checking. The

directors are responsible for attending

every meeting of the Board of

Directors except in case of extreme

necessity.

• Before the Board of Directors’

meeting in 2010, the Board of

Directors’ Secretary prepared meeting

agenda for whole year 2010 in late

2009 for the Board of Directors to be

able to schedule themselves for the

meeting.

• In considering the number of

meetings, the Board of Directors

considered the duty and responsibility

of the Board of Directors. The Board

of Directors’ Secretary shall prepare

the whole year meeting agenda and

matters to be considered in each

meeting in order to provide sufficient

detailed information for the Board of

Directors to understand. For example,

in the March meeting, the Board of

Directors shall approve financial

statement, schedule the annual

general shareholders’ meeting and set

the date of closing of the Company’s

registration book, while the meetings

in May, August and December are

scheduled for reviewing and

approving financial statements for the

first, second and third quarters, and

the December meeting is organized

to consider budget for the following

year.

• The meetings were strictly held in

compliance with the Company’s rules

and regulations, and the Public

Limited Company Act B.E. 2535.

Meeting agenda and related informa-

tion were distributed to the directors

10 days prior to the meeting date to

provide sufficient time for the

directors to study and discuss impor-

tant issues. The Board of Directors’

Secretary and legal advisors attended

the meeting and prepared record,

questions and directors’ recommenda-

tion in the meeting for future

reference and cross-checking.

• In each meeting, the Chairman of

the Board of Directors would conduct

the meeting to last for 1-2 hours,

which is sufficient for the manage-

ment to present the matters for

consideration and for the directors to

carefully and equally discuss the

important issues. The Chairman of the

Board of Directors also encouraged

attending directors to use their best

consideration, ask questions and make

recommendation on each agenda in

every meeting.

5.10) Self assessment of the

Board of Directors

• The Board of Directors jointly

assessed their performance, solved

problems, and improved their work

efficiency and effectiveness. The

Board of Directors, evaluated meeting

attendance and ensured that the

number of directors attending the

meeting was sufficient for the

meeting. The Board of Directors’

Secretary prepared criteria for self

assessment of the whole directors for

the Board of Directors’ consideration

and self assessment at the end of

every year.

5.11) Remuneration of directors

and executives

• The Board of Directors appointed

the Remuneration Committee to be

responsible for ensuring that the

current remuneration of directors is in

line with the pre-set criteria and in

similar range as that offered by other

companies in the same industry.

5.12) Directors and executives

development

• The Board of Directors encouraged

and provided training opportunities for

the Company’s directors and members

of committees to further improve

their ability to perform their tasks. In

2009, 9 directors attended courses

organized by the Thailand Institute of

Directors.

• The Secretary to the Board of

Directors prepared Directors’

Guidebook and criteria on information

disclosure, profile, shareholdings,

changes to shareholding of directors,

etc. and distributed to new directors.

• The Board of Directors stipulated

that the Chief Executive Officer shall

prepare a regular report for the Board

of Directors to update on the

development and succession plans

that the Chief Executive Officer and

the President prepared in case they

could not perform their duties.

• The Board of Directors approved

the executive development plan by

assigning the Chief Executive Officer

to report progress of executive

development plan undertaken during

the year. This plan is considered in

parallel to the succession plan.



38

(1)

Board

of Directors

GOVERNANCE

Corporate

     Management

 Structure

Definition

• Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors mean outside

directors who are not the Company’s

executive or employees, nor

executive directors, nor authorized

signatory directors, independent from

major shareholder, executives and

stakeholders, able to equally protect

the benefit of all shareholders, and

prevent conflict of interest between

the Company and related parties.

•  Executive Directors

Executive Directors mean directors

who are involved in routine operation

and management as well as are

authorized signatory directors.

The Board of Directors comprises the

Chairman who is an Independent

director, 6 non-executive independent

directors and 5 executive directors.

The number of 11 members of the

Board of Directors is supposed to be

appropriate, as well as the composi-

tion of 45 percent executive directors

all are knowledgeable and can provide

in-depth comment in regards to

entertainment industry as well as

formulate strategic business plan,

while non-executive independent

directors shall be account for 55

percent. The non-executive directors

shall have good knowledge and

understanding of the overall

entertainment industrial sector, finance

and banking, asset management,

auditing, law and others, which would

encourage positive opinion expression

in the Board of Directors’ meetings.

The Board of Directors shall make

decision for the best benefits of

the Company.

The Company’s Management Structure, as of 31 December 2009, comprises of

the Board of Directors and 3 committees namely Executive Committee, Audit

Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The committees’

scopes of authorities as responsibilities are as follows:

*Pol.Sub.Lt. Kriengsak Lohachala was appointed as Independent Director according to the Board of Directors Meeting No. 3/2009 on

26 June 2009. (Replacing Mr. Panithan Sethabutra who resigned earlier)

As of December 31, 2009, MAJOR’s Board of Directors consisted of eleven directors as follow:

Name Position % of Shareholding

1. Mr.Somchainuk Engtrakul Chairman, Independent Director -

2. Mr.Vicha Poolvaraluck Director 36.72%

3. Mr.Verawat Ongvasith Director 0.89%

4. Mrs.Paradee Poolvaraluck Director 3.46%

5. Mr.Thanakorn Puliwekin Director 0.14%

6. Mr.Wichai Poolvaraluck Director 0.47%

7. Mr.Athasith Damronggrat Director, Independent Director -

8. Mr.Chai Jroongtanapibarn Independent Director, 0.08%

Chairman of Audit Committee

9. Mr.Wallop Tangtrongchitr Independent Director, 0.02%

Audit Committee Member

10. Mr.Naruenart Ratanakanok Independent Director -

Audit Committee Member

11. Pol.Sub.Lt. Kriengsak Lohachala* Director, Independent Director -
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Authorized signatory director on

the Company’s behalf is “Mr. Vicha

Poolvaraluk Mrs. Paradee Poolvaraluk

Mr. Verawat Ongvasith Mr. Thanakorn

Puriwekin two in four jointly sign and

combined with the Company Seal will

be binding upon the Company”

Authorities of the Board of

Directors

1. The Board may assign one or more

directors to act on its behalf.

2. The Board may authorize a

director to sign together with the

Company seal on behalf of the

Company.

3. The Board may appoint or

empower any person to conduct

MAJOR’s business under its supervision

with suitable issues and timings.

Its appointment or empowerment

may be withdrawn by the Board itself.

4. Directors, who might have

interests on any matter, must have

no right to vote on such matters.

5. The Board might approve the

interim dividend payment if the

Company has sufficient profit to do

so. This payment should be reported

to the next Shareholders’ Meeting.

6. Regarding to the Public Company

Limited Act B.E 2535 indicated that

some transactions, e.g., the

consideration and approval of the

Company’s Financial statements,

the consideration of profit and capital

reserve allocation, the election for

directors’ replacement due  to  term

expiration, the  determination  of

remuneration, the appointment of

external Auditors with their

compensation, the sales and transfers

of MAJOR’s partial or overall business,

the purchase or transfer the

ownership from other companies, the

preparation, amendment or

revocation of MAJOR’s leasing

contracts and the empowerment to

any person to conduct the business

on behalf of MAJOR or the merger

with other persons to share profits

and losses, the Board must have the

resolution from the shareholders’

meeting on such matters.

Responsibilities of the Board of

Directors

1. The Board must conduct the

business in compliance with laws,

the Company’s Objectives, Articles of

Association, and resolutions of the

Shareholders’ Meetings with integrity

and prudence for MAJOR’s best

interests.

2. The Board must inform the

Company immediately their direct or

indirect interests regarding to the

company’s contracts occurred during

the fiscal year. Furthermore, they

must inform their changes on their

holding common shares or bond in

the Company itself or the Affiliate

Companies during the fiscal year.

3. The Board must arrange the

Meeting at least every three months

with more than a half of total

directors attending the meetings.

The resolutions of the meetings are

based on the majority votes.

4. The Board must organize the

Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

within four months after the ending

of the Company’s fiscal year.

5. All directors are restricted from

conducting, investing, and being

partner in the companies having the

same business as MAJOR.

In case that any director or parties

with possible conflict of interest, as

per announcements of the Securities

and Exchange Commission (SEC) and/

or the Stock Exchange of Thailand

(SET), may have conflict of interest,

the director(s) shall have no authority

to approve the matter thus for the

best benefits of the Company and

shareholders.

Definition

Independent directors mean director

that have specifications as follows:

1. Hold not exceeding 0.5% of total

voting shares of the company, its

subsidiaries, affiliates or other jurustic

persons with possible conflict of

interest, including the shares held by

their related persons (under section

258 of securities and exchange act)

2. Neither involving in management,

non controlling nor being authorized

signatory person, nor being the

company’s executive’ employees,

salaried consultant, competent

authorized person to control the

company, its subsidiaries, affiliates or

other jurustic persons and in the last

3 years before appointment.

3. Not being a person related by

blood or legal registration such as

father, mother, spouse, and child

including spouse of the child to

executives, major shareholders,

controlling persons, or persons to be

nominated as executive or controlling

person of the company or its

subsidiary and be independent from

major shareholdersm executives and

controlling persons.

4. Not having a business relationship

with the company in occasional

service and commercial business, in

accordance with the SET’s requirement

on the related transaction.

5. Not being a person who has been

appointed as a representative of the

company’s director, major shareholders

or shareholders who are related to

the major shareholders.

6. Not having any characteristics

which make him/her incapable in

expressing independent opinions.

7. Be capable in protecting all

shareholders/benefits equally and

supervising in order to prohibits any

conflict of interest between the

company and related persons, and

able to attend the meetings of the

Board of directors in order to make a

decision on significant issues.

Independent directors shall perform

their duty independently to ensure

that the company’s politics, plans and

operations are correct, appropriate

and in line with the company’s

objectives and rules as well as the

shareholders’ meeting resolution and

related laws in order to equally

protect shareholders’ benefits.

Furthermore, this definition of

independent directors has been

(2)

Independent

directors
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revised so as to be more strictly than

that defined by SEC.

Criteria in selecting independent

directors

The Company selects independent

directors by considering knowledge,

experience good understanding of

related businesses, vision, sufficient

time to perform duty and qualities as

stated in the concerned government

agencies’ announcements, regulations

and rules. The Company would invite

qualified persons to be its independent

directors. The Company considers

that the independent directors are

able to exercise their knowledge and

capability as well as provide opinions

that are useful and appropriate to

support the Company’s business

operation.

The meeting of the Board of

Directors resolved the qualifications

of the Audit Committee in accordance

with and under the international

standards as promulgated by SEC.

Moreover, the authority scope of the

Audit Committee was adjusted

according to and under the SET

notification.

Definition

Audit Committee members mean

persons appointed by the Board of

Directors or the company’s

shareholders. The Audit committee

members must be independent directors

and not to be directors assigned

by the Board of Directors to make

decision on business operations of

the company, parent companies,

subsidiaries, joint venture, similar

subsidiaries, or any juristic persons that

may have conflict of interst. They

must be neither the director of parent

companies, subsidiaries,

joint venture and similar subsidiaries.

They must have qualifications and

responsibilites as announced by

(3)

Audit

Committee

the SEC and as per the SET

regulations on the qualifications and

work scope of Audit Committee.

They shall also have sufficient

knowledge and experience to review

the reliability of the financial statements

and perform other duties under their

roles as Audit Committee membes.

The Board of Directors considered

that all the Audit Committee

members are qualified according to the

company’s definition and comply with

the SEC and SET regulations.

The Audit Committee meeting also

considered that Mr. Chai

Jroongtanapibarn has good

knowledge and expertise in

accounting and finance, as well as

experience in auditing which is

adequate to review the relaibility of

the financial statements. Therefore,

he was appointed as the Chairman of

the Audit Committee, the biography

has been disclosed in the Audit

Committee member’s certificate of

biography submitted to SET in 2009

according to the new regulation.

Audit Committee all are Independent

Directors, has passed the “Audit

Committee Program” arranged by

Institute of Directors. Three members

of Audit Committee are;

Name Position

1. Mr.Chai Jroongtanapibarn Chairperson of Audit Committee

2. Mr.Wallop Tangtrongchitr Audit Committee

3. Mr.Naruenart Ratanakanok Audit Committee

Responsibilities of Audit

Committee

1. Ensure accurate and adequate

financial reports.

2. Ensure appropriate and efficient

internal control and internal audit

system.

3. Review the Company’s operation

to comply with the Securities and

Exchange Act, the Stock Exchange

of Thailand’s regulation or other

related laws.

4. Consider, assort, appoint

external auditors and consider the

compensation for them.

5. Consider the disclosure of the

Company’s information regarding to

the connected transactions or

conflicts of interest transaction to

ensure the completeness and

accuracy.

6. Prepare the corporate governance

report, signed by the chairperson of

the Audit Committee, and disclose in

the Company’s Annual Report.

7. Perform other duties as assigned by

the Board of Directors.

8. To be accountable to the

Board of Directors as per roles and

responsibilities entrusted and shall

report to them the performance,

recommendations and findings at least

twice a year.

In any case where any

Audit Committee member or parties

with possible conflict of interest, have

conflict of interest which the company

or its affiliates, the acquisition

or sale of assets of listed companies

and related transactions (if any), as

per announcements of the SEC

and/or SET, the Audit Committee shall

report the matter to the Board of

Directors and/or the shareholders’

meeting for consideration and

approval in compliance with referred

law and regulations.
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Name Position

1. Mr.Chai Jroongtanapibarn Chairperson of Executive

Committee

2. Mr.Verawat Ongvasith Executive Committee

3. Mrs.Paradee Poolvaraluck Executive Committee

4. Mr.Thanakorn Puliwekin Executive Committee

(4)

Executive

Committee

Executive Committee of MAJOR consisted of four members;

Responsibilities of Executive

Committee

1. Operate and manage the

Company’s business in accordance

with laws, objectives and regulations

of the Company as assigned by the

Board of directors.

2. Operate and manage the

Company’s business in accordance

with policy and strategy set by the

Board of directors.

3. Follow shareholders’ resolutions

with honesty, ethics and care for the

Company’s benefits.

4. Approve borrowings or lending

from/to financial institutions including

guarantee or make payment in

ordinary business of the Company

such as capital expenditures with in

60 million baht per each transaction.

5. Appoint or cancel staff of the

Company whose title are lower than

chief executive officer.

6. Prepare, propose and set business

policy and strategy to the Board of

directors.

7. Organize the Company’s

structure and management including

interviewing, employing, training

and unemploying staff.

8. Set business plan, authority and

budget as well as manage business

according to policy and strategy

proposed to the Board of directors.

All related or conflict of interest

transactions with executive directors

in accordance with rules and

regulations of Securities and Exchange

Commission must not be voted by

those executive directors who are

related or have conflict of interests.

Definition

• Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

The Company’s Nomination and

Remuneration Committee means

group of persons appointed by the

Board of Directors as the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee. The

Nomination and Remuneration

Committee Chairman shall be an

independent director. At least two

thirds of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee members

shall be independent directors in

order to maintain transparency and

independence in performing their

duty. The committee members shall

have good knowledge and sufficient

experience to nominate directors and

top management of the Company, as

well as to perform other tasks as the

Nomination Committee.

The Company’s Nomination and

Remuneration Committee comprises

the Committee Chairman who is an

independent director, 2 independent

directors and 1 executive director

(information of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee members

are under the Information about the

Board of Directors and Management

chapter). The Board of Directors

considered that all members of the

Nomination and Remuneration

Committee have the qualifications

defined by the Company and comply

with the good governance practice

announced by the Stock Exchange of

Thailand. The Nomination and

Remuneration Committee considered

that Mr.Chai Jroongthanapibarn, an

independent director, is knowledge-

able and has experience in nomination

and remuneration of directors and top

management, and therefore

appointed him the Committee

Chairman.

(5)

Nomination and

Remuneration

Committee
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As of 31 December 2009, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

comprises 4 members with 3 years term. They are as follows:

Responsibilities on Nomination

Function

1. To formulate criteria and policy in

nominating directors, members of

different committees and the Chief

Executive Officer.

2. To consider and nominate

appropriate persons to be appointed

as directors, and members of different

committees and the Chief Executive

Officer for approval by the Board of

Directors and/or Shareholders’

Meeting.

3. To report to the Board of Directors

the results of the Nomination

Committee meetings or other matters

that the Board of Directors should be

informed.

4. To perform any tasks assigned by

the Board of Directors.

Responsibilities on Remuneration

Function

1. To set all rules and policies on

remunerations for the Board of

Directors, committees and Chief

Executive Officer for the approval by

the Board of Directors and/or, as the

case may be, the shareholders’

meeting.

2. To set necessary and appropriate

annual remunerations for the Board of

Directors, committees and the Chief

Executive Officer

3. To report to the Board of Directors

the Remuneration Committee’s

meeting results or other matters the

Board of Directors should be

informed.

4. To perform any tasks assigned by

the Board of Directors.

Name Position

1. Mr.Chai Jroongtanapibarn Chairman of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee

2. Mr.Wallop Tangtrongchitr Nomination and Remuneration

Committee Member

3. Mr.Naruenart Ratanakanok Nomination and Remuneration

Committee Member

4. Mr.Verawat Ongvasith Nomination and Remuneration

Committee Member

(6)

Company

secretary

The Board of Directors appointed

Mr.Chattaphum Khantiviriya, Group Chief

Financial Officer, to perform the duties

of company secretary on giving the

advices regarding laws and regulations

which the Board of Directors shall be

aware, to monitor the Board of

Directors’ conduct as well as to

coordinate and follow up the

execution to be according to the

Board of Directors’ resolution.

Responsibilities of the company

secretary

1. To give basic advice to the Board

of Directors on related laws, rgulations

and provisions in accordance with the

good practices as well as follow up

and monitor the compliance to be

accurate and consistent.

2. To arrange meetings of the Board

of Directors, committees and

shareholders in accordance with the

applicable laws, the company’s

regulations and practices, as well as

complying wit the good corporate

governance policy of the company

and SET.

3. To monitor the disclosing of data

and information to the responsible

government agencies according to

the regulations and requiremetns of

related organizaitons, including

communicating with shareholders and

take care of them appropriately.

4. To provide and keep the following

documents;

a) Directors’ record

b) Invitation letter and minutes if the

Board of Directors meeting, as well as

the company’s annual report.

c) Invitation letter to shareholders

and tis mitnues.

5. To keep the conflict of interest

report provided by directors or

executives.

6. To support the assignment given

by the Board of Directors.

7. To operate others as specified by

the Capital Market committee of SET.
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Responsibilitites of the Chief

Executive Officer

1. To formulate business plan,

investment plan, and annual budget

plan for approval by the executive

committee and/or the Board of

Directors.

2. To be responsible for the overall

management and to deliberate all the

company’s policies to achieve the

preset objectives and within the

policy, business plan and budget plan

approved by the Board of Directors.

3. To be responsible an execution or

payment according to the company’s

authorization regulations or annual

budget approved by the Board of

Directors.

4. To recruit, hire, transfer,

reshuffle, suspend or terminate

employment of any executives or

employees and to stipulate scope of

roles and responsibilities and

appropriate remuneration. An

execution of position equivalent to

senioe vice president or higher shall be

reported to the Board of Directors,

(7)

Chief  Executive

Officer and

Management

Team

At the end of 2009, Management Team of MAJOR consisted of seven

members;

Name Position

1. Mr.Vicha Poolvaraluck CEO

2. Mr.Anavach Ongvasith Chief Cinema Business

3. Mr.Thanakorn Puliwekin Chief Films Officer

4. Mr.Chattaphum Khantiviriya Group Chief Financial Officer

5. Mrs.Jinda Wantanahatai Chief Retails Business

6. Mr.Jiradej Nusthit Chief Corporate Strategy &

Investor Relations

7. Mr.Chate Mungkhaladom Chief Media Sales

while an execution of positions

equivalent to the internal audit

department executives shall be

made with the Audit Committee’s

consideration.

5. To appoint respective authorized

persons to sign the company’s

document in the area of accounting,

finance, purchase, production, sale

and general management as well as

other important document.

6. To set, change, revise or cancel

any rules, regulations, order,

announcement, punishment measures

and internal control systems

for use as guideline for all employees

and to enable the internal management

is executed as per the

company’s policies.

7. To appoint advisors in various

respects significant to the operations

for the best benefits of the company.

The CEO is empowered to appoint

attorney(s) to the lawsuit or defend

case related to the company.

8. To assign person(s) to perform

task on his/her behalf as deemed

appropriate. Such authorization can

be terminated, changed or modified.

9. To report the company’s

performance, progress of any projects

and financlal status to the executive

committee and the Board of Directors.

10.To perform other works assigned

by the executive committee or the

Board of Directors.

In case that the CEO or other

persons with possible conflict of

interest may have conflict of interest,

the CEO shall have no right to

approve such matter.

Remuneration of the Board of

Directors

The Board of Directors’ meeting

no.1/2552 on 24 February 2009

resolved to approve the 2009

remunerations of no more than Baht

9,600,000 for the directors. Noted

that the Company pays an additional

Baht 3,000,000 of special

remuneration to director’s base

on 2008 performance.
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Annual Special

Name Position Remuneration remuneration

 (Baht)       (Baht)

1. Mr.Somchainuk Engtrakul Chairman 800,000 1,000,000

2. Mr.Vicha Poolvaraluck Director 662,500 1,000,000

3. Mr.Verawat Ongvasith Director 582,500 111,111

4. Mrs.Paradee Poolvaraluck Director 562,500 111,111

5. Mr.Thanakorn Puliwekin Director 562,500 111,111

6. Mr.Panithan Sethabutra (January - May 2552) Director 208,333 111,111

7. Pol.Sub.Lt. Kriengsak Lohachala Director/Independent Director 250,001 -

(effective 26 June 2552)

8. Mr.Athasith Damrongrat Director/Independent Director              500,000               111,111

9. Mr.Wichai Poolvaraluck Director/Independent Director 500,000 111,111

10. Mr.Chai Jroongtanapibarn Independent Director 682,500 111,111

Chairperson of Audit Committee

11. Mr.Wallop Tangtrongchitr Independent Director 582,500 111,111

Audit Committee Member

12. Mr.Naruenart Ratanakanok Independent Director 582,500 111,111

Audit Committee Member

Other Remuneration

In addition to ordinary remuneration,

The Company also allocate Employee

Stock Options Program for the

company directors and employees

(prior to the company’s initial public

offering) in the recognition of the

directors and employees’ contribution

to the company as well as motivation

to work for the company in the long

run. The details are shown in ESOP

section. So far, three programs have

been allotted and are summarized as

follows:

Employee stock option (ESOP-W1)

was distributed among directors and

management as followed:

Number

Name Title of options Percentage

(Million)

Mr.Vicha Poolvaraluck Director/ Executive Chairman & CEO 4.50 23.08

Mr.Verawat Ongvasith Director / Executive Director 0.75 3.85

Mrs.Paradee Poolvaraluck Director / Executive Director 0.50 2.56

Mr.Thanakorn Puliwekin Director / Executive Director/ Chief Films officer 2.10 10.77

Mr.Chai Jroongthanapibarn Independent Director 0.95 4.36

Mr.Wallop Tangtrongjitr Independent Director 0.50 2.56

Mr.Hester Chew Independent Director* 0.50 2.56

Mr.Anavach Ongvasith Chief Cinema Business 1.50 7.69

Mr.Chattaphum Kantiviriya Chief Finance Officer 1.15 5.90

* Pol.Sub.Lt. Kriengsak Lohachala was appointed as Independent Director according to the Board of Directors Meeting No. 3/2009

on 26 June 2009. (Replacing Mr. Panithan Sethabutra who resigned effective from 1 June 2009)

* Resigned



45

Employee stock option (ESOP-W2) was distributed among directors and management as followed:

Number

Name Title of options Percentage

(Million)

Dr. Vachara Phannachet Director* 0.5 14.29

Mr. Brian Hall Chief Cinema Business Paragon Cineplex Director* 3.0 85.71

Employee stock option (ESOP-W3) was distributed among directors and management as followed:

Name Title

Number  of

Percentage
options (Million)

Mr.Anavach Ongvasith Chief Cinema Business 0.64 4.92

Mr.Chattaphum Khantiviriya Chief Financial Officer 0.64 4.92

Mrs.Yupin Garnjanawigai SEVP Special Project* 0.64 4.92

Mr.Kittikorn Poomsawang Head of Construction 0.60 4.62

Mrs.Jinda Wantanahatai Chief Retails Business 0.60 4.62

Mr.Artorn Techatantiwong Chief Bowling Business* 0.30 2.31

Mr.Jiradej Nusthit Chief Corporate Strategy & Investor Relations 0.30 2.31

Mrs.Aorrawan Kowathana Chief Service Operations Officer* 0.30 2.31

Ms.Buppa Wandee Director Human Resource Department 0.25 1.92

Remuneration of MAJOR’s Management

Remuneration 2009

Persons Remuneration

(Million Baht)

Salary, Bonus and Provident Fund

TOTAL 10 34.70

* Resigned

* Resigned

* Resigned
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GOVERNANCE

Internal

         Control

Audit Committee supervised

and monitored the

operations of Internal Audit

Department on a

consistency basis. In 2009,

the Committee held a total

of 12 meetings, occasionally

with the Management, the

Auditors, the Internal

Auditors, and Independent,

Non-Executive Directors.

At each meeting, the

Committee reported its

views and recommendations

independently, as an

evaluation of sufficiency for

the internal control system

can be concluded as

follows:

Organization and

Environment: The

Committee views that

MAJOR has prudently set its

operational targets with

organization structure

appropriate for business

under takings. Moreover, it

has also set up rules on

actions against the

company’s interests and

penalty procedures for

those who violate the rules.

Risk Management:

MAJOR has considered its

problems and risks and

sought guidelines, remedial

measures to control and

reduce risks. Meanwhile,

the Internal Audit Unit

Department has been

established to carry out the

auditing process and submit

the audit results to the

Audit Committee on a

quarterly basis.

Administration Control

for Executives: MAJOR has

apparently formulated the

scope of authority for each

level of the executives and

determined strict measures

in considering actions,

activities related to major

shareholders, directors,

executives or any persons

concerned with these

persons on ground of

maximum benefit of the

company. The approval for

such activities must obtain

discretion from the

Audit Committee and/or

the Board of Directors as

the case may be.

Information System and

Communication: MAJOR

provides adequate

information for decision

making of the Board of

Directors and put in place

filing system with complete,

categorized and reliable

documents. MAJOR also

applies the accounting

policy in accordance with

the accounting principles

generally accepted and

appropriate with its nature

of business.

Monitoring System:

MAJOR has made a compari-

son between the business

targets and the actual

performance on a

consistency basis and then

informed the Board of

Directors. Moreover, MAJOR

also implements the internal

audit process of which the

results will be reported

directly to the Audit

Committee.

Monitoring of Inside

Information Usage

MAJOR places an impor-

tance on dissemination of

transparent information to

all parties including institu-

tional investors, analysts,

minor investors and local

and foreign investors, who

are subject to receiving

information on an equality

and fair basis.

The Company’s policy to

provide information to

outsiders includes the

designation of a person

who is assigned to file

specific information for

investors for

acknowledgement with

accuracy and hitting to the

point. The Company also

supervises the use of inside

information in terms that

the material information

which significantly has an

impact towards the

operational performance

shall not be revealed to the

public. Such information will

be disclosed only to the

limited and concerned

groups of persons.

Besides determining

directors, executives and

employees to sign in the

agreements for keeping a

secret issue and/or

the inside corporate

information, MAJOR has also

set a means to control them

not to use the Company’s

inside information for their

own benefits by defining

penalty for those who

violate the regulations.
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GOVERNANCE

Human

    Resources

Business Unit
Number of

Employees

As of December 31, 2009,

MAJOR recorded the

number of 2,833 employees,

to be well-prepared for the

continual growth on Cinema

& Concession Business,

Bowling & Karaoke Business,

Advertising Business and

Rental Business. In year

2009, MAJOR opened two

new cineplexes at

Amatanakorn and Esplanade

Ngamwongwan-Kaerei to

cover the full spectrum of

customer segments.

Staff remunerations,

consisting of salary, overtime

payment, bonus and

provident fund, totaled to

Baht 428,739,824.04 in

2009.

2.1 Recruitment and

Motivation

MAJOR places a focus on

internal recruitment and

then gives additional

trainings since promotion

from within will not only get

staff acquainted with the

company’s operations and

help create morale in

working, but also attract

them to stay longer with

the company, who provides

them with the competitive

compensation with other

companies in the same

industry. In addition, MAJOR

has provided nice working

environment that would

increase staffs enthusiasm.

2.2 Human Resource

Development

MAJOR arranges for the

staff both on-the-job

training and functional

training. For on-the-job

training, senior staffs give

advices and recommenda-

tions all through the whole

process to junior staffs.

With respect to functional

1. Personnel

trainings, various in-house

training courses will be

arranged by both internal

and external lecturers or

sending staff to attend

outside seminar programs

such as those organized

consistently by

The Management and

Psychology Institute (MPI).

MAJOR arranges other

Soft Skills such as Leadership

skill, Selling & negotiation

technique, Marketing skill,

Team work development

etc.

In addition, MAJOR has

co-operated with Stock

Exchange of Thailand

(SET), which is a long-term

program with an objective

to promote and serve

students who need to

utilize their free time

by working to get

experiences. In this

connection, MAJOR offers

the students a chance to

practice in some position

considered to be

appropriate with their

maturity, skill, and spare

time of each student.

Head Office 222

Cinema & Concession 1,658

Bowling & Karaoke 786

Advertising 42

Rental Space & Services 125

Total 2,833

2. Human

Resource

Management

Policy
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Related

     Transactions

GOVERNANCE

Person/Juristic person % of

who may have conflict Ownership  Type of Amount

of interests   interest transactions (million baht) Major details/conditions

The Company has related

transactions disclosed in a

consolidated financial

statement for a period of

January 1 to December 31,

2009 which included

related transactions

between the Company

and/or subsidiaries and/or

associated companies. All

related transactions are

normal business transac-

tions and are disclosed in

notes to financial state-

ments ended December

31, 2009 which is audited

by auditor.

The Company and/or

subsidiaries and/or

associated companies are

comprised of 18 companies

which are Siam Future

Development PLC.,

Ratchayothin Avenue

Co.,Ltd., California WoW

Xperience Plc., Major

Cineplex Lifestyle Property

Fund, Thai Ticket Major

Co.,Ltd, Media Logistic

Co.,Ltd, PVR Bluo

entertainment Co.,Ltd.,

MacThai Co.,Ltd., Well Ad

Co.,Ltd., Well Cineplex

Co.,Ltd., Well Entertainment

Ltd., Petch Pinklao

Co.,Ltd., M Pictures

Co.,Ltd,  Viracha Co.,Ltd,

Viranda  Co.,Ltd,

Ratchayotthin Avenue

Management Co.,Ltd., MVD

Media, Malaysian firm,

Almac Co., Ltd.

Related

transactions

in 2009

Siam Future Associate with

Development PLC  24.10% holding

Ratchayothin Avenue Co.,Ltd Associates with

50 % direct

holding and

12.05% indirect

holding through

SF

Revenue

1. Management Fee

Expense

1. Rental and Service

fee

2.   Utilities fee

3. Equipment fee

4. Advertising cost

5. Sponsorship income

Trade account

receivable

Other receivable

Deposits received

Account Payable

Other Payable

Revenues

1.Interest income

2. Sponsorship

Expenses

1. Rental and service

fee

2. Cost of advertising

3. Interest expense

Other receivable

Deposits received

4.05

23.74

14.88

3.05

1.76

1.00

0.25

15.8

35.31

1.42

5.10

1.67

1.00

1.31

4.0

0.93

2.17

2.07

Management fee for Marketing and

business consultant

To rent rental space to operate cinema

and  bowling businesses in

Chachoengsao, Thonglor, Piyarom and

Esplanade branches, approved by audit

committtee to be comparable to market

price.

Rental space for Suziki avenue. Approved

by Audit Committee to be comparable to

market price.
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Person/Juristic person % of

who may have conflict Ownership  Type of Amount

of interests   interest transactions (million baht) Major details/conditions

California WoW Xperience Plc. Associate with

36.79% holding

(for 9 months in

2009) and

Associate with

19% holding (for

last 3 months in

2009)

Major Cineplex Lifestyle Associate with

Property Fund  33.00% holding

Thai Ticket Major Co.,Ltd Associate with

40% holding

Prepaid rental fee

Other payable

Finance lease liabilities

– non-current

Long-term loans to

related parties

guarantees for bank

loans

Revenue

1. Rental and Service

Fee

2. Utilities Fee

Other revenue

1. Property tax income

2. Trade account

receivable

3. Deposit  received

(included in other non-

current liabilities)

Revenue

1. Management  fee

2. Utilities Fee

3. Dividend income

Expense

Rental and service

fee

Sponsorship income

Account Receivable

Other receivable

Other payable

Advance receipts from

Property lease

Deposit income

Dividend Income

Trade account

receivable

Other payable

18.57

4.28

11.80

12.90

229.99

25.59

15.63

5.49

21.82

3.67

25.00

23.76

69.60

117.37

1.28

 1.97

3.40

0.29

32.29

120.00

4.00

0.75

9.60

The company financially support by

lending credit limit of 100 million baht

with amount proportionate to %

shareholding. Approved by Audit

Committee to be referable to MLR of

SCB Bank.

The company guarantee for bank loans

without any further guarantee charges.

This guarantee was proportionate to %

shareholding and was Approved by

Audit Committee.

Related transaction with Ratchayothin

Realty Co., Ltd with purpose of space

rental at Ratchayothin branch and

Ratchayothin Co.,Ltd. with purpose of

space rental at Sukhumvit branch worth

6,000 baht per sq.m.

Property management fee which is a

normal business transaction.  Approved

by Audit Committee to be comparable to

market price.

Rental space to operate cinema and

bowling businesses under MJLF area.

This is a normal business transaction,

approved by Audit Committee to be

comparable to market price.

Trade account receivable from selling

movie tickets for MAJOR.
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Person/Juristic person % of

who may have conflict Ownership  Type of Amount

of interests   interest transactions (million baht) Major details/conditions

Media Logistic Co.,Ltd 47.51% holding

by MVD

(subsidiary of

company)

PVR Bluo entertainment Associate with

Co.,Ltd 49% holding

Company’s directors Company’s

directors

Company’s employees Company’s

employees

MacThai Co.,Ltd 100% Holding

by  Mr.Vicha

Poolvaraluck

Well Ad Co.,Ltd Holding by

Mr.Vicha and

Mrs. Paradee

Poolvaraluck

Well Cineplex Co.,Ltd Holding by

Mr.Vicha

Poolvaraluck’s

father

Trade account

receivable

Other revenue –

copyright  charge

Other receivable

Other payable

Long-term loans to

related parties

Revenues:

1. Rental and service

fee

2. Utility fee

Expense

1. Utility fee

2. Consulting fee

3. Advertising fee

Account receivable

Other payable

Deposit received

Management fee

Revenue

Management fee

Expense

Equipment rental

Deposit (include in

non-current asset)

1.35

4.50

6.60

3.67

12.75

8.79

6.61

0.09

2.20

3.10

4.00

0.30

1.30

23.40

4.80

21.60

4.90

Compensation for VCD,DVD loss which is

calculated by its selling price and paid to

MVD.

Copyright charge according to 9 million

baht contract which will be collected 4.5

million baht  for two periods. This is

normal transaction and approved by audit

committee to be market price.

Accrued directors’ remuneration.

Loans to the company’s employees. This

is a part of the company’s welfare.

Rental space at Ratchayothin,

Sukhumvit, Rangsit, Samrong and

Metropolis branches. This is normal

transaction and approved by audit

committee to be market price.

1.95 million baht per month started from

1 January 2007 – 31 December 2011.

Approved by Audit Committee. The

agreed price is no more than 1% of

revenue which comparative less than

compensation for  Managing Director in

listed companies.

400,000 baht a month for managing

Pinklao branch owned by Mr.Vicha’s

father.

1.8 miliion baht a month covered 8

theatres for 15 years strated from 1

February 2002 to 31 January 2017. The

agreed price was comparable with those

of EGV cinema at Central Pinklao and

was approved by Audit Committee.
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Person/Juristic person % of

who may have conflict Ownership  Type of Amount

of interests   interest transactions (million baht) Major details/conditions

Well Entertainment Ltd Holding by

Mr.Vicha

Poolvaraluck’s

father

Petch Pinklao Co.,Ltd Holding by

Mr.Vicha

Poolvaraluck’s

mother

M Pictures Co.,Ltd Subsidiary of

MPIC plc (the

company’s

associate)

with holding of

99.99% (for the

first 6 month

of 2009)

Viracha Co.,Ltd Mr.Vicha

Poolvaraluck

joined as one of

director

Viranda  Co.,Ltd. Mr.Verawat

Ongvasith  joined

as one of

director

Ratchayothin Avenue 12.04% Indirect

Management Co.,Ltd holding through

SF plc. and

49.96% Indirect

holding through

Ratchayotthin

Avenue Co.,Ltd.

Expense

1. Space rental and

service

2. Utility fee

3. Sponsorship income

Deposit (include in

non-current asset)

Expense

1. Space rental and

service

2. Utility fee

Other payable

Revenue

1. Rental and service

income

2. Utility Fee

Expense

1. Film hire cost

Revenue

1. Advertising

Revenue

1. Advertising

Trade account

receivable

Revenue

1. Management fee

Expense

1. Service fee

2. Utility fee

3. Amortization of lease

right include interest

payment

4. Interest expense

5. Sponsorship income

Deposit

Prepaid rental fee

11.40

8.66

0.12

4.90

12.34

3.78

1.13

1.97

0.16

17.06

5.00

5.00

5.35

18.75

0.87

1.32

0.26

0.62

0.01

1.38

12.38

Rental spaces and service charges

amount  to 800 baht a month a sq.m. for

operate cinema business at Pinklao

branch for 15 years started from 1

February 2002 to 31 January 2017. The

agreed price is comparable with those of

EGV Cinema at Central Pinklao and was

approved by Audit Committee.

Paid for the right to rent MAJOR

Cineplex Pinklao branch. The agreed

price was comparable Central Pinklao’s

project  and was approved by Audit

Committee.

This transaction was Approved by Audit

Committee to be comparable to

market price.

This transaction was collected from

MVD Co.,Ltd. for VCD Copyrights and

films release revenue sharing. This

transaction was Approved by Audit

Committee to be comparable to market

price.

Resort advertising income from Viracha

Co.,Ltd. which was Approved by Audit

Committee to be comparable to market

price.

Resort advertising income from Viranda

Co.,Ltd. which was Approved by Audit

Committee to be comparable to market

price.

This transaction was for rental space

with purpose of operating the company’s

office at Suzuki Avenue. Approved by

Audit Committee to be comparable to

market price.
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Person/Juristic person % of

who may have conflict Ownership  Type of Amount

of interests   interest transactions (million baht) Major details/conditions

MVD Media, Malaysian firm Mr.Patrick

John Leone, former

director of MVD,

joined as one

of director

Almac Co., Ltd. 59.98% holding

in Exertainment

Co.,Ltd. (subsidiary

of the company)

Trade account

receivable

Account payable

0.80

7.06

CD, DVD selling according to market

price.

This transaction was occurred for

exercise equipments of Exertainment

Co.,Ltd. Calculation was based on the

market price.
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Top ten major shareholders

as of December 31, 2009 are as follows:

Shareholder Number of shares Percentage

 (Million)

1 Mr.Vicha Poolvaraluck 323.84 36.72%

2 STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 47.04 5.33%

3 STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST

 COMPANY FOR AUSTRALIA 43.45 4.93%

4 Thai NVDR LIMITED 42.30 4.80%

5 MAJOR Cineplex Group Plc. 40.91 4.64%

6 Mr.Taweechat Jurangkool 37.40 4.24%

7 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 36.47 4.14%

8 NORTRUST NOMINEES LTD. 30.61 3.47%

9 Mrs. Paradee Poolvaraluck 30.47 3.46%

10 MORGAN STANLEY &

CO. INTERNATIONAL PLC 18.60 2.11%

Major

       Shareholders:
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ESOP-W2
Employee Stock Option Program #2 (ESOP-W2)

Type indicate holder and non-transferable

Term 4 years from the issuing date

Amount 3,500,000 units

Offering method allot to 2 directors and employees without offering

price (-0- baht a unit)

Exercise ratio 1 warrant for 1.057 common share*

Exercise price 14.448 baht per share*

Exercise period last working day of March and September till

expiry on which the last date is June 31, 2008.

ESOP-W3
Employee Stock Option Program #3 (ESOP-W3)

Type indicate holder and non-transferable

Term 5 years from the issuing date

Amount 13,000,000 units

Offering method allot to 82 directors and employees without offering

price (-0- baht a unit)

Exercise ratio 1 warrant for 1.02 common share

Exercise price 16.447 baht per share*

Exercise period last working day of February, May, August and November

till expiry on which the last date is November 15, 2012.

Employee

   Stock Option

    Program

ESOP-W1
Employee Stock Option Program #1 (ESOP-W1)

Type indicate holder and non-transferable

Term 5 years from the issuing date

Amount 19,500,000 units

Offering method allot to 39 directors and employees without offering

price (-0- baht a unit)

Exercise ratio 1 warrant for 1.13 common shares*

Exercise price 11.649 baht per share*

Exercise period last working day of March and September till

expiry on which the last date is June 15, 2008.
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ESOP-W1
Exercise Result ESOP-W1

Exercise Number of Increased of Use of proceed

Date ordinary authorized

share  share capital

(Bt)

1 30/9/2003 710,000 10,053,600 Working capital

2 31/3/2004 No exercise - -

3 30/9/2004 1,836,100 22,620,752 Working capital

4 31/3/2005 No exercise - -

5 30/9/2005 No exercise - -

6 31/3/2006 8,940,400 108,357,648 Working capital

7 2/10/2006 5,669,243 68,711,227 Working capital

8 30/3/2007 1,325,000 16,059,056 Working capital

9 1/10/2007 333,000 3,923,303 Working capital

10 31/3/2008 633,300 7,522,337 Working capital

11 13/6/2008 819,200 9,542,861 Working capital

This is the final

exercise period

ESOP-W2
Exercise Result ESOP-W2

Exercise Number of Increased of Use of proceed

Date ordinary authorized

share  share capital

(Bt)

1 30/9/2004 No exercise - -

2 31/3/2005 No exercise - -

3 30/9/2005 No exercise - -

4 31/3/2006 No exercise - -

5 2/10/2006 No exercise - -

6 30/3/2007 No exercise - -

7 1/10/2007 3,111,000 45,831,252 Working capital

8 31/3/2008 No exercise - -

9 13/6/2008 No exercise - -

This is the final

exercise period
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ESOP-W3

Exercise Result ESOP-W3

Exercise Number of Increased of Use of proceed

Date ordinary authorized

share  share capital

(Bt)

1 30/11/2007 No exercise - -

2 29/2/2008 409,000 6,858,930 Working capital

3 2/6/2008 103,100 1,695,686 Working capital

4 1/9/2008 No exercise - -

5 28/11/2008 No exercise - -

6 27/2/2009 No exercise - -

7 29/5/2009 No exercise - -

8 31/8/2009 No exercise - -
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According to the resolution of

the board of directors’ meeting

no.7/2008 held on December 15,

2008 regarding the approval on the

proposed share repurchase for

financial management purposes to

maintain an appropriated value of the

Company’s stock, due to the current

market price has been lower than its

book value. In addition, it shall help to

increase liquidity, support a better

financial management and improve

earning per share for shareholders.

The details are as follows:

• The maximum amount for the

share repurchase is 650 million baht.

• The number of shares repurchased

88 million shares (at par value 1.00

baht per share) or equal to 9.98 %

of the total of paid-up capital.

The repurchase period will be

started form December 15, 2008 to

June 28, 2009.

• Procedure used for the repurchasing

of shares - on the Stock Exchange of

Thailand

• The repurchase price shall not

exceed 115 % of the average closing

price of 5 trading days, prior to the

repurchase date.

After the shares repurchase program,

shareholders should receive a higher

dividend per share, since the

repurchased shares are not eligible to

dividend receivable. With the same

reason, the return on equity should

also increase while the company

should have reduction in liquid assets

and book value.

Result of Share Repurchase at the

end of project.

Cumulative number of shares

repurchased to date (including item

2.2) 40,907,700 shares

or equal to 4.64% of paid-up capital

which is 267,920,095 baht in total.

Board of directors no. 1/2010, held

on 25 February 2010, approved the

resale of share repurchased with the

details as follows:

• Number of shares to be re-sold

40,907,700 shares or equal to 4.64%

of the total of paid-up capital.

• Procedure for shares resold - on

the Stock Exchange of Thailand

• The period for the resale of shares

will be from 12 March 2010 to 27

June 2012 (after 6 months from the

completion date of share repurchase

and not later than 3 years from this

time)

• The offering price for the resale of

the repurchased shares shall not be

less than 85% of the average

weighted closing price of 5 business

days prior to the resale Date.

Resale of

share

repurchased
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January

On the National Children

Day, Major Cineplex Group

invited children and their

families for a free movie at all

branches of Major Cineplex

Group.  And in collaboration

with FM91 Traffic Pro and

FM106 Family news Radio,

Major Cineplex Group also

organized special movie

session of “Madagascar 2”

for more than 700

underprivileged children from

6 Foundations.  H.E. Air

Chief Marshal Kamthon

Sindhvanada, Privy Councilor,

presided over this event at

Major Cineplex Ratchayothin.

Major Cineplex Group, in

collaboration with Siam

Cement Group (SCG)

brought executive teams,

company staff and clients

selected from article writing

to attend “10,000 Check-

Dams to Our King” activities

to construct check-dams in

Mae-Sai-Kam protected area,

Amphur Jaehom, Lampang

province. The purpose was

to slowdown water streams

from the top of the

mountains, retaining dirt on

SocialSocialSocialSocialSocial

AAAAActivitiesctivitiesctivitiesctivitiesctivities

the hillsides, keeping the

hillside areas moist,

preventing drought which

might lead to brush fires

that destroy the mountains.

February

To celebrate the Valentine’s

festival, Major Cineplex

Group in collaboration with

Royal Thai Navy brought the

youths from Naratiwat and

100 students from Ton-Son

mosque to attend in the

Field Trip under the 3rd Thai

Unity Project with the

purpose of igniting the value

of nationalism and

cooperation among Thais,

especially in three

southernmost provinces of

Thailand.  In addition,

MAJOR invited three famous

couples i.e. Admiral

Kamthorn Poomhirun,

Deputy Commander-in-Chief

of the Royal Thai Navy and

his spouse, Wipawee-Athidul

Korman and Kornkanok

Yongsakul and Payu

Nuengjamnong to share

their affectionate

experiences and organized

the special movie round of

“Before Valentine” at

Infinicity Hall, Paragon

Cineplex.

March

Major Cineplex Group

responded to the

Government’s economic

stimulus measure to revive

the country’s economy by

allowing the 2000-baht

cheque holder handed out

by the Government to

exchange for a 2000-baht M

Cash card which is the cash

card enable the holder to

buy movie tickets, popcorns

and soft-drinks as well as

offer special privileges within

a single card.

Starting from 19th March

2009, Major Cineplex Group

in collaboration with Organ

Donation Center, the Thai

Red Cross Society and Sony

Pictures Releasing

International Co., Ltd. offer

20 baht discount for a movie

of “Seven Pounds” to

anyone that state intention

to donate their organs by

showing identification card

to donate their organs to

Thai Red Cross Society at all

branches of Major Cineplex,

EGV, Paragon Cineplex, and

Esplanade Cineplex.

Major Cineplex Group, in

collaboration with AIS and

Kantana, organized special

movie session, “Kan Klay 2”

for more than 2,800 children

from many charity

foundations around Thailand

such as World Vision

Foundation, Foundation for

Slum Child Care under the

royal patronage of H.R.H.

Princess Galyani Vadhana

Krom Luang Naradhiwas

Rajanagarindra, Duang

Prateep Foundation,

Foundation for disabled

children, Setsatien School

GOVERNANCE
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and Rajvithi Home on March

24, 2009 at Siam Pavalai,

6th Flr, Paragon Cineplex and

on March 26, 2009 at

several branches of Major

Cineplex and EGV Cinemas in

the provincial areas.

Major Cineplex Group was

awarded the Business

Networking for Social and

Environment in “Miracle of

sharing” Project from Mr.

Arnan Punyarachun,

Chairman of the “Sharing for

Sustainable Society” Project,

at the Siam Society under

Royal Patronage.  This

award was in recognition of

various activities and free

movie session for

approximately 300

underprivileged children from

6 foundations.

Major Cineplex Group, in

collaboration with EF

families for a free viewing of

its latest movie, “Monsters

vs Aliens 3D”.  The objective

was to encourage good

citizenship among the taxi

drivers and to help publicize

Krungsri Imax theatre, the

largest cinema screen in

Thailand, for educational

viewing to the wider

audience both Thais and

foreigners.

May

Major Cineplex Group, in

cooperation with Ministry of

Social Development and

Human Security, arranged

special activities and

recreation together with a

special movie session of

“Better in Time” for the

elders from Banbangkae

Social Welfare Development

Center for Older Persons

and Pathumthani Social

Welfare Development

Center for Older Persons.

Three celebrities, including

Pol.Lt.Gen. Somyod Deemak

- Senior Doctor from Police

General Hospital, M.R.

Malinee Jakrapun and Kris

Sethamrong or “Uncle

Jamras” from a movie of

“Better in Time”, also

attended the event to share

tips for being healthy for the

Seniors at Infinicity Hall,

Paragon Cineplex.

June

Major Cineplex Group, in

collaboration with Royal Thai

Air Force and the BTS

Skytrain, organized the “Thai

Youth Unity” Project inspired

by the royal speeches of His

Majesty the King to promote

the peace and sense of

nationalism in the three

Education First, gave out

the scholarships for English

Language courses at EF

Education First in England to

the winners of the 2
nd

“English on Screen”

program. The 2
nd

 “English on

Screen” program successfully

recruited 2,000 senior-high-

school students for free

English courses taught in

the theatre. The top-10

most talented students

were given scholarships

worth more than 2 million

baht to study English at

Bournemouth, England for

two weeks from March 29

to April 11, 2009.

April

Krungsri Imax theatre, in

collaboration with FM91

Traffic Pro Radio, initiated a

“Taxi Day” activity by

opening its 3D IMAX theatre

to taxi drivers and their
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southernmost provinces of

Thailand.  The royal

guidance to cope with the

separatism problems was “to

understand, get involved,

and develop” by upholding

peace in promoting love and

unity.  The Project brought

in youths from the Muslim

communities in the three

southernmost provinces of

Thailand for a briefing on the

Thai peaceful way of living

happily together.  An activity

“Better package, Better

value” for the youths to do

together with celebrities

was creating artworks

utilizing unwanted waste

objects with an objective to

show the youths on how to

utilize their free time while

build awareness on recycling.

Many celebrities and stars

attended in this event.  In

this occasion, MAJOR also

arranged free movie session

“Up” at Infinicity Hall,

Paragon Cineplex.

August

Major Cineplex Group, in

collaboration with Thailand

Convention & Exhibition

Bureau, arranged for free

movie of “Sweat for life, Our

King is an inspiration” in

order to propagate the

Royal commitment of HM

the King and HM the Queen

in their intentions to

improve the standard of

living for their people and

strengthen the Thai society

as well as the country.  The

movie audience could also

humbly adapt the Royal tips,

ideas, and thoughts into

their day-to-day lives.  The

movies were produced by

11 well-known directors

September

Major Cineplex Group, in

collaboration with

Department of Religious

Affairs, announced the

launch of Vessantara Fund

Project by publishing 25,000

copies of booklets and DVD

movie and deliver to

nationwide secondary

schools and public libraries.

In this occasion, Major

Cineplex Group organized

special charity movie

“Vessantara” on November

23, 2009 at Siam Pavalai

theatre, Paragon Cineplex in

order to raise fund for

Buddhist priest and

underprivileged students as

well as support for students’

meal in faraway schools.

October

Major Cineplex Group, in

collaboration with Dutch Mill

consisting of Tanit Jitnukul,

Nimit Pipitkul, Pisut

Praesaengeiam, Vithitnun

Rojanapanich, Withaya

Thongyooyong, Amnart

Tangsomboon, Supaksorn

Chaimongkol, Suko

Waysalee, Sinut

Kamukamakul, Chinnawat

Tangsutthijit and Nakaprapa

Nakprasit and were screened

during August 28 to

September 2, 2009 at

MAJOR Ratchayothin branch,

EGV Pinklao branch, Paragon

Cineplex and Esplanade

Cinepelx.
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a bowling charity contest

organized by the Political

Photographer Club.  The

winner won a trophy from

Princess Ubolratana

Rajakanya.  In this occasion,

Major Cineplex Group led by

Thanakorn Pulivekin, Chief

Films Officer, donated the

sponsorship money for the

event as educational

scholarships and sports

equipment fund for children

living in underprivileged

areas.  Chalard Jandech,

President of the Club,

Chaiyos Sirisawat, the Club’s

Secretary and Mekin Eimsa-

ard are among the Club’s

executive joining the event

at MAJOR Bowl Hit, Pinklao

branch.

December

Vicha Poolvaraluck, Chairman

of Major Cineplex Group,

presided at “Benefaction for

the King” event as well as

donating money and daily

necessities for the seniors to

Banbangkae Social Welfare

Development Center for

Older Persons in occasion of

H.M the king’s birthday and

the 82th Anniversary

celebration at Banbangkae

Social Welfare Development

Center for Older Persons.

MAJOR Bowl Group, a

subsidiary of Major Cineplex

Group, in collaboration with

FM106 Family news Radio,

arranged the “Bowling,

Spare & Share” activity at

blu-O Rhythm and Bowl,

Esplanade Ngamwongwan-

Kaerei branch in order to

persuade radio listeners to

join, share and make merit

by donating their money and

being candidate to play

bowling with many famous

news reporters and

celebrities.  The revenues

from this activity were

donated to 10 charity

organizations, i.e. Dabos

Foundation under the Royal

Patronage, Thai Unity

Project, etc.

Group and EF Education

First, organized “the 3rd

English on Screen Movie

Camp” program under

Edutainment learning

concept at Grand EGV,

Siam Discovery recruiting

2,400 from 15,000 senior-

high-school students for

free English course taught

in the theatre.  The top-5

most talented students

were given scholarships to

study English in five

countries i.e. England, USA,

Canada, Australia and New

Zealand.  Narvin Yaowapol,

famous singer and actor, also

attended to share his

experience in abroad.

Major Cineplex Group, in

collaboration with Pattaya

municipality, arranged for

“Love Pattaya Clean up

Pattaya” campaign bringing

more than 200 MAJOR

executive teams and

employees to clean up

Jomtian beach together

with Pattaya residents and

Na-Kleu bay conservative

group.  Held at Jomtian

beach, Pattaya, Chonburi

province, the activity was

to rebuild awareness on

environmental preservation

so that Pattaya remains

as a pleasant tourist town

for both the Thais and

foreigners.

November

H.E. Mr. Alongkorn

Ponlaboot, Deputy Minister

of Commerce, presided over
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Company

Overview

MAJOR operates 5 core

Business Groups consisting

of Cinema Group (including

Admission sales and

concession sales), Bowling

Group (including bowling,

karaoke and ice skating rink

business), Retail space

management and rental

Group, Advertising media

Group, and Films distribution

Group (Theatrical film

distribution and Home

distribution of VCD, DVD,

and Blu-ray discs and films

production).

With addition of new

Cineplexes and some

capacity management

activities in 2009, MAJOR at

YE09 operates 354 cinema

screens serving 88,250

seats, 478 bowling lanes,

358 karaoke rooms, 2 ice

skating rinks, and 44,000

sq.m. of retail space.

The Films distribution Group

have also been strategically

restructured and expanded

to best strategize with the

core cinema business.  On 1

July 2009, MAJOR has sold

all 19,999,995 ordinary

shares in MVD Co., Ltd.

(MVD) (formerly “Pacific

Marketing and Entertain-

Management

discussion
 & analysis

ment Group Co., Ltd.”) to

M Pictures Entertainment

Public Company Limited

(MPIC).  The selling price is

Bt.19.60 per share for a

total consideration of

Bt.392 million.  MAJOR has

also acquired 275,883,475

ordinary shares of MPIC at

the price of Bt.1.40 per

share, for consideration of

Bt.386.24 million, by

exchange of ordinary shares

of MVD at the fair value of

Bt.392 million and cash

payment of Bt.5.76 million.

The percentage of

shareholding in MPIC has

changed from 40.81% to

65.93% after completion of

these transactions.  MPIC

and its subsidiaries subse-

quently become subsidiaries

of MAJOR.  Accordingly

MAJOR has consolidated

the financial statements of

MPIC and its subsidiaries

since the transactions date.

The intention of the

transactions was to create

an integrated films distribu-

tion company when

combining with MPIC’s

existing subsidiary, M

Pictures Co. Ltd. (MP), an

upstream theatrical distribu-

tor.  In addition, MPIC

Group has also set up a film

production company,

namely M Thirty-nine Co.

Ltd. (M39), to stimulate

and advocate growth in

Thai films production with

the ultimate goal of

growing Thailand’s film

industry as a whole.

In an effort to be a total

lifestyle entertainment

company, MAJOR has also

been investing in Siam

Future Development Plc.

(SF), a lifestyle neighbor-

hood mall developer,

California Wow Xperience

Plc. (CAWOW), an

“exertainment” fitness

operator, and Thai Ticket

Major Co. Ltd., an “online

realtime” ticketing services

for performances and

exhibitions.

Internationally, MAJOR in

2H08 set up a joint venture

company, PVR blu-O

Entertainment Co. Ltd.

(PVR blu-O) to operate

entertainment bowling

business in India in partner-

ship with PVR Limited

(PVR), a leading cinema

operator incorporated and

listed in Stock Exchange of

India.  PVR blu-O has been

commercially opened since

Mar-09.

The partnership with PVR

has flourished and devel-

oped to the point that

MAJOR’s Board of Directors’
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2009 Performance

Meeting No.5/2009, held

on 13 November 2009, has

passed the resolutions and

approved the investment in

ordinary shares of PVR with

total investment value not

exceeding THB450 million

and not exceed 15 percent

of total paid-up shares of

PVR.  The Board of

Directors’ Meeting has:

• Approved the invest-

ment in the 2,557,000

newly issued ordinary shares

of PVR Limited (“PVR”)

through a preferential basis

at the price of Rs.165 per

share or equivalent to

THB125.04 per share (Rs.1

is equivalent to THB0.7578:

an exchange rate from the

Bank of Thailand as of 12

November 2009).  The

investment in said preferen-

tial issue represents 10% of

the paid up capital of PVR

post the above issue.

• Approved that the

remaining investment will

be purchased through the

secondary market.

As of YE09, PVR is under

registration process for the

increased share capital.

Thus, such payment is

recorded as advance for

share subscription.  Both of

these investments (in PVR

and PVR blu-O) can be

considered as a great

opportunity to tap into the

enormous growth

potentials that the Indian

market has to offer.

or 4% from the previous

year. The modest 4% yoy

increase in the total

revenues is on the back-

drop of Thailand’s continu-

ing political turmoil, the

Global economic meltdown,

and the swine flu pan-

demic.  The political unrests

and the swine flu may have

somewhat put a dent into

the admission sales growth,

especially during the

“Songkran mayhem” in Apr-

09 and the peak awareness

of the flu in 3Q09, while

the Global economic

meltdown and the lingering

political uncertainty has

severely impacted the

Advertising media Group

and the Bowling Group.

Throughout the year, there

are however some out-

standing admission sales

performance of many films,

both from Hollywood and

the locally-produced Thai

In 2009, MAJOR has

generated total revenue of

5,561 million bahts, an

increase of 232 million baht

films.  To name a few,

Transformers: the revenge

of the Fallen, 2012, and

AVATAR are the Hollywood

films that have grossed well

over 200 million bahts at

the box offices in Thailand.

There are also many Thai

films that have been very

successful even in the

unfavorable external

situations.  Bangkok Traffic

Love Story, Phobia2 (or 5-

Prang), Wong-Kam-Lao,

Saranae Howpeng are the

top box office sales from

the Thai production

studios, grossing more than

or around 100 million bahts.

These exceptionally strong

films have pushed the full-

year admissions sales up by

12%.

The films with strong

admissions sales seem to

concentrate in the second

half of the year.  Starting in

2Q09, MAJOR has devised

the so-called “dynamic

pricing strategy” to maxi-

mize the admission sales

revenues through prudent

upward management of

the average ticket price

(ATP).  With simple pricing

based on supply-demand,

ATP has been managed to

rise over 10% in 4Q09 from

the full-year average in

FY08.  The widespread

popularity of AVATAR 3D

has also contributed to the

rise of ATP.

The “dynamic pricing

strategy” was one initiative

to “refocus at the core

business” in an effort to

cope with the ripple effects

of the Global economic

meltdown and the lingering

political turmoil which have

hard-hit the high-margin

Advertising media Group

and the Bowling Group.

Not only the US subprime

problems and its aftermaths
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which have brought down

or crippled many US

financial institutions

throughout FY08, Thailand

has its own set of severe

political problems which

have led to the seizure of

Suvannabhumi International

Airport by a political group

in 4Q08 as well as a violent

street riots by another

group during the “Songkran

mayhem” in Apr-09.  All of

these incidents have taken

big tolls on MAJOR’s

advertising media group

causing the advertising

services income to drop by

38%.  Business and

consumer confidence have

been on its downward

spiral.  Hundreds of millions

of advertising expenditures

have been cut, especially

for the “below-the-line”

media, in preparation for

the worst-in-decades global

economic recessions and

the lingering local political

uncertainty.  These are the

main factors responsible for

the fall of advertising

services income for three

consecutive quarters.

Total costs for 2009 are

3,919 million bahts.  The

increase of 371 million bahts

or 10% yoy is not an

exceptional increase in any

cost item.  In facts, the

cinema margin has improved,

while margins for the other

business has somewhat

been maintained.  Rather,

the high-margin advertising

services income, a

significant contributor to

the overall margin, has

sharply contracted for the

reasons as discussed above.

SG&A expenses have

grown by 13% yoy to

1,386 million bahts because

of three main reasons: 1)

the full consolidation of

MPIC Group starting at

YE09 vs. only MVD at

YE08, 2) exceptional non-

cash expenses for

provisioning for advertising

receivables induced by the

economic recession, and 3)

one-off expenses related to

the opening of the new

Standalone Cineplex at the

end of the year have

caused SG&A to rise by

13% yoy.

Due to all these adverse

effects, MAJOR registers

merely 334 million bahts of

net profit in FY09, or an

EPS of 0.39 baht.  The net

profit is further pressured

by the wider loss contribution

from an associated company,

CAWOW, due to the

shutdown of a

non-performing club and

larger magnitude of

extraordinary items in FY08

than the ones in FY09.

Nevertheless, MAJOR

maintains high dividend

payout ratio of 90%,

equivalent to a DPS of

0.35 baht.

Assets

At YE09, MAJOR has

11,269 million bahts in total

assets, up 1,610 million

bahts or 17% yoy.  The

increase can be split into

two portions: 409 million

bahts increase in the

current assets and 1,201

million bahts in the

non-current assets.

The increase of 409 million

bahts in the current assets

to the total of 2,414 million

bahts is attributable to two

main reasons: 1) advance

for subscription of PVR

shares and 2) some movies

under production of

MPIC/M39.  Both of which

are strategic investments

for future growth.

The increase in the

non-current assets of 1,201

million bahts is due mainly

to two main causes.

First, the opening of the

brand-new Standalone

Cineplex at Ngamwongwan-

Kaerei (formerly known as

Ratanathibate) in Dec-09

has resulted in an increase

in the property, plant and

equipment.  Second, the

Financial position

as of year-end



the Liquidity ratios at YE09

seem to suggest some

deterioration when com-

pared to YE08.  The fact of

the matter is that MAJOR

has begun to fully

consolidate MPIC in 2Q09.

The fundamental

differences of the two

companies make two

period-ends incomparable.

MAJOR enjoys cash receipts

from sales to cover its

current liabilities, while MPIC

relies on cash from short-

term borrowings to bridge

the gap between cash and

receivables.  Thus, MPIC’s

current liabilities are

proportionately larger when

compared to its current

assets.

The profitability ratios are

relatively lower as well in

FY09.  Multiple causes have

contributed to the

weakness as discussed

above. The Global recessions

and the lingering political

turmoil have caused sharp

drops in the high-margin

advertising service incomes,

which have been strong

contributor to the bottom

line.  They have also caused

adverse effects on CAWOW

performance which has led

to a closure of a

non-performing club,

resulting in a significant

Liquidity and

Profitability Ratios
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business restructuring

activities in the Film

distribution Group has

pushed MAJOR’s stake in

MPIC up to about 65%.

This implies a full

consolidation of MPIC’s

balanced sheets. Thus,

Goodwill and Intangible

assets, mostly film rights,

of MPIC are consolidated

causing the non-current

assets to increase.

Though not contributing to

the assets growth, one

important change in the

account of “investment in

associates”, is a

reclassification of the

remaining investment in

CAWOW.  In Nov-09,

MAJOR has reduced its

stake in CAWOW down

from 36% to 19%.  As such,

CAWOW is technically no

longer an associate that

needs to be equity-

accounted for, while the

remaining investment is

recognized as a “long-term

investment in other

company”.

At YE09 cash and cash

equivalents total 532 million

bahts.  Cash flows gener-

ated by operating activities

are 1,449 million bahts,

while net cash inflows of

714 million bahts are from

financing activities.

Meanwhile, a net amount

of 1,872 million bahts are

used in investing activities,

most notably the invest-

ment in new Standalone

Cineplex at Ngamwongwan-

Kaerei.

Major source of funds

during 2009 comes from

baht 1,500 million deben-

ture issuance and bank

overdrafts & short-term

borrowings in an amount of

630 million bahts.  The total

liabilities at YE09 stand at

5,880 million bahts, up

1,643 million bahts or 39%

yoy.  The current liabilities

increase by 975 million

bahts, while the non-

current liabilities contribute

668 million bahts.  The

current liabilities increase

is due mostly to the

consolidation of MPIC’s

short-term debts.  The rise

in non-current liabilities is

mainly from the issuance of

a 3-year straight, unsecured

and unsubordinated

debenture worth 1,500

million bahts at a fixed

4.8% rate per annum.  On

the verge of the global

trend of rising interest

rates, the bond proceeds

are used to refinance some

of the long-term floating

rate debts as well as

financing the new

Standalone Cineplex at

Ngamwongwan-Kaerei.

write-off weighing down

MAJOR’s bottom line.

Some of these unfavorable

factors, however, seem to

improve in 4Q09.

Externally, there are some

clear signs of recovery in

the Thai economy.

Internally, the “dynamic

pricing strategy” should

continue to help improve

on the margins during the

gradual recovery process of

the advertising media

business, while losses at

CAWOW will no longer drag

down MAJOR’s bottom line

as long as MAJOR’s stake in

CAWOW remains under

20%.

Source of funds
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FINANCIALS

Audit Committee

Report of the

The Audit Committee of Major Cineplex Group Public Company Limited is comprised of three

independent directors.  The Audit Committee is empowered by the Board of Directors to

examine all matters relating to the financial status of the Company, and its internal and external

audits. The Committee pursues and promotes good corporate governance by actively creating

awareness and providing advice to management on sound risk management and internal control

practices.

For the fiscal year 2009, the Audit Committee held twelve meetings. In such meetings, the

Audit Committee met external auditor to review the Company’s consolidated financial statement

every quarter-end 2009 and provided assessments and recommendations to the Board of

Directors and also met independently with the management and the internal and external

auditors of the Company, conducted reviews and evaluations of accounting policies, the

procedures relative to the accounting policies, the internal control assessment, and the audit

plan. Where weaknesses were identified in internal controls, corrective action plan has been

taken to eliminate or reduce the associated risks.

Accordingly, in our opinion, the internal control of Major Cineplex Group Public Company Limited

operated effectively throughout the year to ensure that the Company’s assets were safeguarded,

proper accounting records were maintained, and resources were utilized efficiently. The Audit

Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that Mr. Kajornkiat Arunpirojanakul CPA

License no. 3445, Mrs. Nataporn Panudom CPA License no. 3430 and Mr. Pisit Thangtanagul CPA

License no. 4095 of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited, be re-appointed as the Company’s

auditor for the financial year ending December 31, 2010.  The re-appointment of the auditor and

acceptance of its fees will be subjected to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual

General Meeting to be held on April 7, 2010.

Chai Jroongtanapibarn

Chairman of Audit Committee

March 18
th

, 2010
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Statement

Responsibility

of the Board of Directors to the Financial Statement

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company and consolidated financial statements as well as

financial information as publicized in annual report. The financial statements are prepared according to generally

accepted accounting standard in Thailand which applied appropriate policy, consistent practice with careful

consideration and best estimation as well as enough disclosure of information in the notes to financial statement.

Moreover, the Board of Directors has provided and maintained efficient internal control system to ensure that

accounting records are accurate, complete and adequate to preserve assets and prevent fraud or materially

irregular operations.

Also, the Board of Directors has appointed Audit Committee who are independent directors and not be a

part of management team to take responsibility of financial statements, internal control system and to

ensure and opine over related and conflict of interests transactions that are accurate and complete. The Audit

Committee’s opinion has been shown in the Audit Committee report in this annual report.

The Board of Directors believes that the Company’s internal control system is sufficient and be able to ensure

that the Company and consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2009 are reasonably trusted.

Mr. Somjainuk Engtrakul Mr. Vicha Poolvaraluck

Chairman of the Board Chairman
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Major Cineplex Group Public Company Limited

Balance Sheets

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008
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Major Cineplex Group Public Company Limited

Balance Sheets (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008
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Major Cineplex Group Public Company Limited

Statements of Income

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008
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Major Cineplex Group Public Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008
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Major Cineplex Group Public Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows  (Cont’d)

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008
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Major Cineplex Group Public Company Limited

Notes to the Consolidated and Company Financial Statements

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated and Company Financial Statements

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008
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